
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Regular Public Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland 

 

DATE:    April 05, 2022 

 

 

OPEN SESSION - 6:15 P.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting(s) 

 1. Statement of closed meeting held April 5, 2022  

Presentations 

1. Presentation of a Certificate of Recognition to Brianna Lavelle, Fort Hill HS Freshman Wrestler, 

for her many tournament achievements in wrestling 

2. Quarterly presentation of awards to employees who have reached career milestones with the City 

of Cumberland 

Proclamations 

1. Proclaiming April 5, 2022 as Cumberland Arbor Day 

2. Proclaiming the month of April in Cumberland as Fair Housing Month 

Director's Reports 

(A) Administrative Services 

1. Administrative Services monthly report for January 2022 

(B) Engineering 

1. Engineering Division monthly report for February, 2022 

Approval of Minutes 



1. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of November 16 and 23, 2021, and the Closed Session 

and Work Session Minutes of December 7, 2021, and the Special Public Meeting Minutes of 

March 29, 2022 

Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing to present project recommendations and receive comment on the Draft 2022 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Anual Action Plan 

New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 26,984 - approving a Special Taxing District residential exemption of $334.93 for 

27 N. Centre Street 

2. Order 26,985 - approving the hiring of James T. Wilson as a construction inspector for 

the Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement Project (31-17-W) to provide 

onsite technical advice on a day-to-day basis for the amount of $32,000 

3. Order 26,986 - authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

with MDOT - SHA to award Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant assistance 

in the amount of $6,291,232.63, or 80% of eligible project costs, with a $1,572,808.16 

City match, to be used for the Baltimore Street Access Project 

4. Order 26,987 - approving the sole source purchase of 2 new Ford Escape SUVs from 

National Fleet Group for the not-to-exceed amount of $59,777.48 using Sourcewell 

Contract No. 091521-NAF in accordance with City Code Section 2-171 (c) 

5. Order 26,988 - authorizing execution of a Contract of Sale with Steve and Wendy 

Herker for the sale of their property at 306 Fayette Street (Allegany County Land 

Records, Book 2075 / Page 164) to the City for the amount of $125,000, authorizing 

acceptance of the deed, and granting the City Administrator and City Solicitor the 

authority to execute documents necessary for the transfer 

6. Order 26,989 - accepting the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, dated March 28, 2022, to (1) approve a Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA 

#22-01) to amend the "Recreation, Amusement, Entertainment" section of the Use 

Regulations Table (Section 25-132) to define Fantasy Gambling as a permitted use in all 

city zones besides residential; (2) amend Section 11-132, entitled "Gambling," to support 

the proposed amendments to the Use Regulations Table; and (3) authorize the 

commencement of procedures to effect the amendments   

7. Order 26,990 - appointing Joseph P. George to the Evitts Creek Steering Committee as 

the City Council representative effective April 5, 2022 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

1. Proclaiming April 5, 2022 as Cumberland Arbor Day





File Attachments for Item:

2. Proclaiming the month of April in Cumberland as Fair Housing Month





File Attachments for Item:

. Administrative Services monthly report for January 2022



Administrative Services Monthly Report for January, 2022 
 

 

April 5, 2022 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City Hall 

Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

 

The following report is submitted by the Department of Administrative Services for the month of January, 

2022. 

 

 

Information Technology Department 
December and January 2022 

 

 

December 2022: 

Statistics 

 

 132 new help desk requests 

 130 help desk requests resolved 

 

Activities 

 

Major department initiatives in the past month include: 

 

● Continue making changes to update our network environment and improve security 

● Continued process for firewall migration project 

● Apply year-end updates to LOGOS for HR and Finance  

● Contacted CISA (Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency) about performing an evaluation 

on the Water Filtration Plant.  Scheduled for first of March. 

● Installed new Firewall at the South End Fire Station 

  

 

January 2022: 

Statistics 

 

 143 new help desk requests 

 137 help desk requests resolved 

 

Activities 

 

Major department initiatives in the past month include: 

 

● Continue making changes to update our network environment and improve security 



● Continued process for firewall migration project 

● Work with vendor (Muni-Link) to adjust for blank utility bills until normal supply is available again 

● Setup a Holiday schedule in AMAG to automate doors 

 

 

Parks and Recreation 
January 2022 

 
Co-ed Volleyball League - No league operations this season  
 

Field Usage: No usage, areas closed for the season.  New season to begin in March. 
 

Areas of Work 

 July 4th Fireworks proposals were due to P&R on Sunday January 31, 2022  

 Seasonal employment applications available – Lifeguards, Cashier, Day camp, Park Watchman. 

 Planning for pool and day camp season 2022 

 Pavilion reservations were postponed due to moving reservation process to Citizen Serve – updated 

training needed  

 Budget FY 2023 preparation  

 Intern in Recreation from Frostburg State University – 1/16/22 

 Distribution of Groundhog Color pages to City Schools 
 

Meetings 

 January Recreation Advisory Board meeting1/10/22 

 Annual CDBG Block Grant - Zoom 

 Groundhog Day program planning meeting 

 Skate Park Meeting 

 ARPA – City project request 

 Citizen Serve updates 

 Day Camp Directors, Intern and Staff  
 

Upcoming 

 Recreation Advisory Board Meeting 2/7/22 

 Constitution Park Pavilion reservations – Reservations to begin March 1 after Citizen Serve training 

 Continue to take summer seasonal employment applications for lifeguards, and day camp counselors 

 July 4th Fireworks – Receive and complete contract for 2022 program with “Starfire”  

 Work related to Field scheduling for the Spring and Summer Season  

 Planning for 2022 Spring/Summer programs and events – Possible Easter Event, After School – Arbor 

Day program, Pool and Day camp etc. 

 Planning for Sunday in the Park Concert Series. 

 

 

Community Development Report 
January 2022 

 

CODE COMPLIANCE 

 

Code Enforcement Activity: 

77 new cases received - 23 of those are still open 



15 violations were found. 

67 cases have been resolved. 

 

     
 

PERMITS & RENTAL LICENSES 

 

ISSUED - Permits, Reviews, and Licenses 

14 Permits/Reviews issued  

 

Building Demolition Electrical Miscellaneous  

Residential .......... 1 Residential ................ 1 Residential ............. 1 Residential................. 2 

Commercial ........ 1 Commercial .............. 0 Commercial ........... 2 Commercial ............... 0  

 

Occupancy Plumbing Signage  Use Public ROW 

Residential .......... 1 Residential ................ 0 Commercial ........... 1 Total issued ............... 2 

Commercial ........ 3 Commercial .............. 0  

 

Utility Rental Licenses Rental Inspections .  Certificates of 

 Residential .......... 0 Issued ...................... 45 Conducted: .......... 32 Appropriateness 

 Commercial ........ 0  Passed ................... 30 Issued ......................... 1 

   Failed ...................... 2 Change/Amendment 

    Issued ......................... 0 

Demolitions Plans, Reviews, Amendments and Appeals 

Residential .......... 0 (ZA, SPR, SR, ZMA, ZTA, SRA) 

Commercial ........ 0 SR ............................... 1  

 

 

Revenue from ‘Issued’ Permits/Reviews  

Building Permits ................................................................ $187.00 

Miscellaneous Permits .......................................................... 15.00 



Occupancy Permits ............................................................... 90.00 

Sign Permits ........................................................................... 23.00 

Utility Permits ......................................................................... 0.00 

Plan Reviews, Amendments & Appeals ............................ 50.00 

Zoning Classification Determination. (info request) .......... 0.00  

Municipal Infractions (Citation)............................................ 0.00 

Certificates of Appropriateness .......................................... 30.00 

Rental Licenses (new & renewals) ................................. 3,925.00 

Paid Rental Inspection Requests  .......................................... 0.00 

TOTAL  ..........................................................................  $4,320.00 

 

Demolition Permit – Bonds  ................................................. $0.00 

 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 

January 2022 

 

 

Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Monthly Activity 

Dec 

2021 

Report 

Original 

Bud ERR Contract 

Lifetime 

Funds Exp   

Project Year Orig. Budget     Expended Remain 

2019 Slush (Final) 2019 $5,659.63     $0.00 $5,659.63 

2019 Total Funds   $5,659.63 ERR Contract Expended $5,659.63 

Baltimore Street Redesign 2020 $402,700.00 x Released $0.00 $402,700.00 

HRDC Emerg Homeless Prevention 2020 $25,000.00 x x $20,247.17 $4,752.83 

South Penn Playground 2020 $37,500.00 x x $37,500.00 $0.00 

Admin. 2020 $110,065.20 x x $77,821.64 $32,243.56 

Fair Housing 2020 $8,454.00 x x $8,454.00 $0.00 

YMCA Gilchrist HVAC 2020 $54,000.00 x x $54,000.00 $0.00 

AHEC Dental Access 2020 $8,000.00 x x $8,000.00 $0.00 

Incredible Years Parenting Fam. Junction 2020 $7,000.00 x x $7,000.00 $0.00 

PHA FCH Sidewalks Ph. 2 2020 $50,000.00 x x $50,000.00 $0.00 

Constitution Park Inclusive Playground Ph.2 2020 $65,000.00 x x $64,173.80 $826.20 

HRDC Transitional Homeless Shelter 2020 $6,000.00 x x $0.00 $6,000.00 

2020 PI Slush (final as of July 2021) 2020 $66.40     $0.00 $66.40 

2020 Grant Totals   $773,785.60     $327,196.61 $446,588.99 

Baltimore Street Redesign 2021 $232,721.00 Released     $232,721.00 

HRDC Rental Rehabilitation 2021 $19,300.00 underway     $19,300.00 

YMCA Riverside Dehumidification 2021 $200,368.00 Released x   $200,368.00 

Admin. 2021 $126,426.00 x   $26,968.11 $99,457.89 

Ind. Cost 2021 $15,120.00 x   $4,738.50 $10,381.50 

Fair Housing 2021 $8,454.00 x   $1,831.87 $6,622.13 

YMCA Gilchrist HVA Replacement Ph. 2 2021 $48,520.00 x   $16,173.00 $32,347.00 

AHEC Emergency Dental Access 2021 $4,000.00 x x   $4,000.00 

Assoc. Char Long Term 2021 $4,000.00 x x   $4,000.00 



Assoc. Char Short Term 2021 $5,000.00 x x   $5,000.00 

PHA JFV Sidewalk Imps. 2021 $35,000.00 x     $35,000.00 

FCRC IPV 2021 $9,500.00 x x $0.00 $9,500.00 

Targeted Foot & Bike Patrol 2021 $3,961.00 x x $836.70 $3,124.30 

Jane's Place Inc. 2021 $4,000.00 x x $658.20 $3,341.80 

YMCA Food Program Trans. House Shelter 2021 $5,000.00 x x   $5,000.00 

Constitution Park/Splashpad 2021 $87,750.00       $87,750.00 

2021 PI credits           $15.25 

2021 Grant Totals   $809,120.00     $51,206.38 $757,913.62 

 

 

CDBG CV CARES ACT FUNDS 

Project 

Amount 

Funded Expended 

Funds 

Remain 

CV HRDC Emergency Assistance $24,992.05 $24,992.05 $0.00 

CV Small Business Grants   $0.00 $0.00 

CV Associated Charities Emergency Homeless Prevention $21,768.22 $6,768.22 $15,000.00 

CV Hazard Pay Relief Program $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 

CV Broadband & Technology Accessibility $89,000.00 $54,951.50 $34,048.50 

CV Needs Reallocated   $285,490.73 $0.00 $285,490.73 

TOTAL  CV1 $476,251.00 $141,711.77 $334,539.23 

          

          

  B20MW24001           Award $476,251.00     

          

  Total $190,760.27 $141,711.77 $669,078.46 

          

CV3 AYEP Youth Center Rehabilitation $113,160.00 $0.00 $113,160.00 

CV3 YMCA Transitional Housing Sanitizer $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $0.00 

TOTAL CV3 $119,910.00 $6,750.00 $113,160.00 

         

 

Historic Planning/Preservation 

January 2022 

 

Ruth Davis–Rogers, new Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator, fills vacant position of 

Historic  Planner/Preservation Coordinator, on 1/10/22  

 

Personal Training  

Received training on the following systems:  

• Citizenserve  

• Municode  

• Intelligrants (State of MD) 

• Civicplus 

• (HPC) Attended January 12th HPC Meeting  

 



Historic Preservation Commission Meeting  

Prepared and sent determination letter to project reviewed at Jan. 12th meeting  
 

Meetings  

• Attended Meeting with Jeff Silka and Dee-Dee Ritchie concerning activities taking place in the Canal 

Place district. 

• Attended informal meeting regarding Carver Community Center  

• Attended monthly DDC Meeting  
 

Communication  

Made introductions and exchanged emails with contacts at:   

• City of Cumberland  

• Maryland Association of Historic District  Commissions  

• Maryland Historic Trust 

  

Certificates of Appropriateness (COA)  

Collected COA’s for Feb. 9th HPC meeting  
 

Grants & Tax Credits  
 

• Maryland Department of Housing and Community  Development  

• Resources for Independence  

• Cumberland Housing Authority  

 

Received award notification on funding request for the 2022 Community Legacy Program. Funding was 

awarded to three  programs:   

• Cumberland Main Street Connections $150,000  

• Residential Accessibility Improvement $50,000  

• YMCA Gilchrist HVAC $50,000  

Worked on existing Façade Grant management  

Started formulating the Cumberland Roof Program  

Reviewed management and status of Community Legacy and Sustainable Community Awards Consulted and 

answered questions regarding tax incentives with several members of the public  

 

Reports  

Allegany Arts Council sent notification that the 2022 Art & Entertainment District Redesignation Application is 

due April 1,  2022. This application is due every 10 years and the City previously assisted in the preparation of 

this application.   
 

Several internal requests for Section 106 Reviews were made. Projects were discussed, additional information is 

needed  before application/review can be made. 

 
 

Comptroller’s Office   
January 2022 

 

Cash Flow: 

 

Attached for your review is a Cash Flow Summary for the month of January 2022.   

 



On January 1, 2022, the City had a cash balance of $21.1 million.  Receipts exceeded disbursements by $2.1 

million resulting in a cash balance of $23.2 million at January 31, 2022.    

 

As of January 31, 2022, the significant tax receivable balances were as reflected in the table below.   

     

     

Taxes receivable (General Fund) 3,334,749$      

Beg Balance New Billings

Adjustments/ 

Abatements Collections Bad Debt Ending Balance

FY 2022 1,512,550$   899,643$        (11,737)$      102,133$      -$                 2,298,323$      

FY 2021 529,373        185                 (11,355)        17,157          -                   501,046           

FY 2020 323,307        -                 (1,394)          9,218            -                   312,695           

FY 2019 64,998          -                 (1,514)          4                   -                   63,480             

FY 2018 56,735          -                 (1,515)          -                    -                   55,220             

FY 2017 26,522          -                 (1,369)          -                    -                   25,153             

FY 2016 24,209          -                 (1,209)          -                    -                   23,000             

FY 2015 22,258          -                 (1,107)          -                    -                   21,151             

FY 2014 13,669          -                 -               -                    -                   13,669             

FY 2013 9,339            -                 -               -                    -                   9,339               

FY 2012 5,574            -                 -               -                    -                   5,574               

FY 2011 3,109            -                 -               -                    -                   3,109               

Prior FY's 2,990            -                 -               -                    -                   2,990               

2,594,633$   899,828$        (31,200)$      128,512$      -$                 3,334,749$      

 

$729,606 

11,604

1,093,941

463,172

0

$2,298,323 

Real Property (Half Year)

The current year tax receivable balance is comprised of the following:

Real property (non-owner occupied)

Non-Corp Personal Property

Corporate Personal Property

Real Property (semiannual payments)

 
 

The City’s liquidity position continues to be strong as illustrated in the following cash and investments 

table.  Restricted cash and investments are comprised primarily of invested American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) funds received in advance and bond proceeds restricted to associated capital projects and 

expenditures.   

 



Cash Investments

Beginning Balance 21,060,760$   12,876,740$   

Add:

Cash Receipts 12,038,100     434                    

Investment Transfer -                    -                     

Less:

Disbursements 9,925,608       835                    

Investment Transfer -                    2,000,000        

Ending Balance 23,173,252$   10,876,339$   

Restricted 7,484,699$     6,154$              

Cash and Investment Summary

January 31, 2022

 

 

The table below illustrates cash restrictions and restricted investments associated with specific 

expenditures and/or capital projects.   

 
Restricted Cash

1/1/2022 Increase Utilization 1/31/2022

Police Seizures 110,628$           -$               -$               110,628$           

Est of Dorothy Jackson 11,250               -                  -                 11,250                

Bowers Trust 53,580               -                  -                 53,580                

Street Improvement -                      -                  -                 -                      

GOB 21 2,452,739          195                 -                 2,452,934          

ARPA Funds 4,799,577          617                 -                 4,800,194          

Demolition & Fiscal Agent Bonds 56,113               -                  -                 56,113                

7,483,887$       812$              -$               7,484,699$        

Restricted Investments

1/1/2022 Increase Utilization 1/31/2022

DDC 6,989$               -$               835$              6,154$                 

 

 

 

The DDC restricted investment was funded through donations and is restricted for the purpose of 

maintenance of the Wes Han Fountain in the Downtown Mall. 

 

GOB 21 is the FY21 general obligation bond issuance restricted for scheduled capital projects, equipment 

and closing costs. 

 

 

Capital Projects and Associated Debt: 

 

The tables below illustrate undrawn Maryland CDA bond proceeds and unused general obligation bond 

proceeds (GOB21) as well as the accumulated debt and grant proceeds associated with the Decatur Street 

waterline and the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) projects. 



 
Available Bond Proceeds

1/1/2022 Issue Utilization 1/31/2022

CDA 2019 2,221,005$          -$             1,209,600$     1,011,405$        

CDA 2021 7,118,653            -                122,337           6,996,316          

G0B 21 2,452,739            -                (195)                 2,452,934          

11,792,397$        -$             1,331,742$     10,460,655$     

Decatur Street Project

1/1/2022 Issue Utilization 1/31/2022

MWQFA Series 2022A -$                      1,549,998$  133,027$         1,416,971$        

MWQFA Series 2022B -                        516,666       44,342             472,324             

Decature Street Grants 1,003,000            -                -                   1,003,000          

1,003,000$          2,066,664$  177,369$         2,892,295$        

CSO Projects

1/1/2022 Issue Utilization 1/31/2022

Evitts Creek Debt 156,740$             -$             -$                 156,740$           

Evitts Creek Grant 5,418,560            -                -                   5,418,560          

78" Pipeline Debt 6,075,000            -                -                   6,075,000          

78" Pipeline  Grant 46,338,080          -                -                   46,338,080        

57,988,380$        -$             -$                 57,988,380$      
 

CDA 2019 utilization of $1.21 million consists of $10K toward the Baltimore Street access project 

engineering costs and $1.2 million toward a 100-foot aerial ladder fire truck.  CDA 2021 utilization of 

$122K includes $97K toward the 100-foot aerial ladder fire truck, $6K toward a Water Department DAF 

compressor, and $19K for storage area network (SAN) drive replacements at City Hall. The GOB21 $195 

balance increase is interest earned. 

 

The Decatur Street waterline project cost is $3.1 million and is funded with $1.0 million in grants and $2.1 

million in loans with $0.5 million of the loan amount being forgivable.  The debt issuance occurred on 

January 27, 2022.  Series 2022B is forgivable after 10 years and incurs 25% of any costs charged among it 

and Series 2022A.  This first draw of $177K is for project materials. 

 

The following three projects are major upgrades to the combined sewer collection system.  Evitts Creek 

Phase 3 is in the engineering phase with the majority of the necessary funding in place. This project is 

funded with $5.4 million in grants and $0.2 million in loan and is on hold pending site access being 

granted by CSX. Evitts Creek Phase 4 is in the planning phase and funding will be sought from Maryland 

Department of the Environment (MDE) during FY 22 to begin the engineering phase. Phase 4 project cost 

is estimated at $8 million. The 78” pipeline project is budgeted to begin construction during FY22, but is 

delayed pending Army Corp of Engineers approval and private property easement or acquisition.  The 

total estimated project cost is $52.4 million and is funded with $46.3 million in grants and $6.1 million in 

loan with $1.5 million of the loan amount being forgivable. 

 

COVID-19: 

 

Available Funding (as of January 31st, 2022) 

 

The City is receiving $19,595,850 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  Funding is distributed 50% in 

calendar year 2021 and the other 50% one (1) year after.  On June 1, 2021, the first 50% was received in the 

amount of $9,797,925.  The U.S. Treasury issued guidance providing greater details on the eligible uses and 

priority of these funds.  These are: 

 

 Support public health expenditures  



 Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency 

 Replace lost public sector revenue 

 Provide premium pay for essential workers 

 Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 

 

Funds available for use: 

 

 Budgeted  Utilized  Remaining 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)  $19,595,850 

     Respond to the health emergency

          Community Programs

DDC Assistance to Small Businesses  $       183,500  $          700  $     182,800 

Promoting the Community  $         33,563  $             -    $       33,563 

Amphitheatre and Pavilion 1&2  $       174,350  $             -    $     174,350 

Pool Area and Splash Pad  $         71,250  $             -    $       71,250 

          PPE

               General  $         55,000  $     16,890  $       38,110 

               Facilities and Equipment  $         11,000  $       1,320  $         9,680 

Prisoner Processing Improvements  $       176,200  $             -    $     176,200 
HVAC improvement at City Hall & 

Public Safety Buildings  $    1,300,000  $             -    $  1,300,000 

     Premium Pay  $       833,952  $   833,952  $                0 

     Revenue Loss  $    6,537,558  $4,149,913  $  2,387,645 

     Infrastructure Investments

          Water

          Sewer

          Broadband

Unallocated  $  10,219,476  $             -    $10,219,476 

     Total:  $19,595,850  $  19,595,850  $5,002,776  $14,593,074 

Purpose  Awarded  

 Allocation 

 
 

Note:  On February 17, 2022 the Mayor and City Council authorized the unallocated balance to 

be utilized toward additonal community programs, revenue loss for the provision of 

government services, and water infrastructure on Order number 26,961. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

       Jeffrey Silka 

       City Administrator 

 

       sln 



File Attachments for Item:

. Engineering Division monthly report for February, 2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

2008 05-08-S Evitts Creek CSO Upgrades Phase 

III (gravity sewer under railroad)

Replacement of CSO line connecting 

Evitts Creek Pump Station effluent with 

gravity line that parallels the Canal 

Towpath.  Said gravity line is being 

replaced under project 17-03-S(1).

Design NO CHANGE -  WRA received notice from CSX on 7/7/21 

stating that they would no longer allow access in yard for any 

investigative or rehab activities. This decision was reviewed 

and confimed by Alex Saar (PE in Jacksonville office) on 

10/29/21. City now assessing legal route of obtaining access to 

site.

MDI 11/24/2021

2008 06-08-S Interceptor Sewer to Evitts Creek 

Pump Station Phase IV

This is the sewer along Evitts Creek 

upstream of the Pump Station. Project is 

to evaluate existing line and determine if 

repair or replacement is best option.

Design UPDATED - Received engineering report from Gwin Dobson & 

Foreman on 1/18/22. Requested MDE Grant funding, using the 

report as a reference, in February. Awaiting notice of funding 

appropriations later this year.

MDI 3/11/2022

2013 1-13-FPM Flood Control System Concrete 

Repairs

Repairs to various points of FCS system 

per USACOE inspection

Complete COMPLETE - Project was completed on 11/23/2021. Working 

with MDE to close out all permits and submit for 

reimbursement (MDE Grant funded).

MDI 1/19/2022

2014 04-14-WWTP Sludge Screening Study/Design Study to select the best alternative to 

keep rags out of the recently cleaned and 

modified digester because the 

modifications will make it impossible to 

revive rags in the future.

Design NO CHANGE Need/Benefit of the project is being reevaluated, 

and for now the project is on hold.   Design is complete and the 

project will remain on this report for the time being.

RLS 4/2/2018

2014 19-14-M Greene Street Complete Street Plan Planning Study for Greene Street Planning NO CHANGE - The  Design Report from Alta Planning + 

Design was submitted and presented to the Mayor and City 

Council.   The plan to start work on Construction Funding 

Applications has been delayed because of the Baltimore Street 

Project, which would have been competing for the same funds.  

This project still needs to be done and should be a priority in 

the future. 

RLS 6/1/2017

2015 9-15-M Potomac River Walk The Study Phase of this project is being 

done through the Cumberland MPO and 

consists of a Walk / Trail for pedestrians 

and bikes along the Potomac River 

between Wills Creek and the YMCA

Study NO CHANGE -This project has been turned over to Canal 

Place.  Engineering Services for Design were received.  

Recommendation from the committee was to award to CEC.

RLS 8/9/2019

2015 16-15-M 2015 Fall Tree Removal Hazard Tree Removal Construction UPDATE Contractor has completed project.  This will be the PTE 4/29/20162015 18-15-S CSO Water Quality Analysis Base line data collection for analysis of 

future CSO needs after CSO Storage is 

on line.

Planning NO CHANGE Project continues. Staff are taking regular 

scheduled stream samples for e-Coli analysis at this time.  

Rainy days (once a month) are the target for sampling at this 

time.

RJK 3/9/2022

2016 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access 

Improvement - Final Design

The purpose of the New Baltimore Street 

Town Center project is to reopen and 

improve Baltimore Street, which is 

currently configured as a pedestrian mall, 

to vehicular traffic while maintaining 

elements of the mall.

Design UPDATED - The review comments have been submitted to 

MDOT and the package should be sent to Federal Aid in the 

coming days. The MOU for the TAP grant will be on the April 

5th M&CC agenda.

RLS 3/17/2022

2016 17-16-M Stage Renovations at Liberty Street 

Stage

Replace wood stage with Concrete Design NO CHANGE - This project would be unnecessary if the 

Baltimore Street Access project is executed. The project will 

remain on this list until the Baltimore Street project moves to 

construction.

RLS 5/15/2019

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

Page 1 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2016 18-16-BR John J. McMullen, Bridge No. A-C-01 

Repairs

Bridge Repair Planning NO CHANGE -  Submitted State in liue of Federal Aid 

application on 12/28/21. Awaiting to hear from the SHA for 

further instruction upon their review.

MDI 1/19/2022

2016 19-16-S 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to 

CSO

78" Pipeline to CSO tank in accordance 

with Consent Decree

Design NO CHANGE - The USACE is requiring the City to perform a 

Safety Assurance Review of the project. The City is 

coordinating the SAR requirements with USACE and further 

info will be provided.

RLS 1/26/2022

2017 2-17-FPM Flood Control Encroachment removal 

Project

The City as the Local Sponsor of the 

Flood Control Project is expected to 

maintain the easements along the Flood 

Control Project, however the area along 

Wills Creek and other areas were never 

given any comments until the Corps of 

Engineers standards changed.  

Completion of this project is necessary to 

allow the City to get a Satisfactory rating 

on its annual Flood Control Inspections.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project has been delayed because of 

other work, but must be done.  A tree removal project has 

been bid out and a contractor selected to do the work of 

removing trees in the encroachment area.

RLS 7/11/2018

2017 3-17-M Route 51 Bridge 12" Waterline 

Replacement

Replace water line on bridge as part of 

SHA Bridge Deck Project

Complete NO CHANGE - This project is complete and will removed from 

this list next month.

RLS 11/23/2021

2017 18-17-M Maryland Avenue Development
This is not and Engineering Project, but 

included here to cover future department 

work with the development.

Design NO CHANGE - Phases 1 & 2 of the Cumberland Gateway 

project has moved into construction. The Department will 

support future phases for stormwater management reviews 

and traffic design support.

RLS 3/26/2021

2017 31-17-W Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water 

Main Replacement

Prior to designing the water main 

replacement a more detailed Water Model 

analysis of the City's system will be done 

to make sure the issues are being 

properly addressed.  Design will follow.

Design UPDATE - Construction began on 3/14 on Altamont Terrace 

and will continue through August.

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 08-18-BR Cumberland Street Bridge 

Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Design UPDATE - The Federal Funds have been approved to allow 

the project to go into Final Engineering. MDOT should be 

issuing notice to proceed in the coming days.

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 09-18-BR Baltimore Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Design UPDATE - The project is waiting for the USACE to issue the 

408 permit which should occur in April. The ROW certification 

was completed in March. 

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 22-18-M Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Contract documents for the FY20 garbage 

and recycling collection bid process

Planning NO CHANGE  Proposals received proposals to extend the 

contract for FY23.  Noble Environmental (Mountainview 

Landfill) submitted an acceptable 1-year extension back in 

December.

Burgmeier's Hauling provided a proposal for hauling curbside 

trash and recycling for FY23.  This proposal was accepted by 

M&CC in January. 

 

RJK 3/9/2022

2018 25-18-BR SHA Project: Replacement of MD 51 

Bridge Deck

Replace the water line under the industrial 

blvd bridge under a MDOT bridge 

rehabilitation project

Construction Refer to project 3-17-W - Project will be removed next month RLS 10/11/2018

2018 26-18-M Ridgeley Levee System Certification

Page 2 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2018 31-18-WFP Pine Ridge Water & PUC Rate 

Issues

Project involves determining a path 

forward regarding the supplying of PA 

residents with water

N/A NO CHANGE - City staff continues to work through issues with 

PA regulators about water issues

RLS 1/28/2020

2018 32-18-FPM Rehabilitation Assistance for Flood 

Damages to Flood Risk Management 

Projects

Request USACE to make repairs or 

provide funding to address flood control 

issues

Planning NO CHANGE - The USACE has denied financial support due 

to the flood control being in an unacceptable condition. The 

City is looking to enter the SWIF program to receive aid to get 

financial support for construction.

RLS 10/12/2018

2018 43-18-BR Fayette Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Planning NO CHANGE - Funding for design work has been identified. 

The City is working on a quit claim deed with CSX to allow the 

project to move into the Federal Bridge program.

RLS 1/26/2022

2018 44-18-BR Washington Street Bridge 

Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Planning NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and subject to 

CSX negotiations.

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 5-19-M Virginia Ave Lot Demolition Remove two structures and retaining 

walls at 6, 8 and 10 Virginia Ave.

Construction Bidding NO CHANGE - The grading plan has been approved by ASCD 

and the project has been turned over to Code Enforcement for 

demolition

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 7-19-WFP Filter Building Pilot Study Perform a study to evaluate the potential 

to replace current filter building with a new 

membrane/GAC building in the future. 

The City is required to perform a pilot 

study to validate the technology we are 

proposing to use.

Study UPDATE - Project is waiting for authorization from the M&CC 

on how to proceed.

RLS 3/17/2022

2019 10-19-M Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the residential 

properties within the City Limits which 

include blighted properties and recent 

demos. 

Construction NO CHANGE- Contract underway (No work through winter 

months)

DTG 3/7/2022

2019 11-19-M Non Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the Commercial and 

Public Owned Properties within the City 

Limits.  To include water tanks, City Hall, 

Public Safety and several others.

Construction NO CHANGE- Contract underway (No work through winter 

months)

DTG 3/7/2022

2019 14-19-M WWTP RMP Compliance Services RMP Compliance for OSHA 29 CFR 1910 Planning NO CHANGE Compliance work ongoing. RJK 3/9/2022

2020 2-20-M Frederick St Parking Garage Repairs Repairing a spalled section of slab on 

grade in Frederick St parking garage, as 

well as looking into sealing all concrete 

driving surfaces

Planning NO CHANGE- Researching proper repair systems for spalled 

concrete in parking garages. Working with Street Dept. to 

determine if city forces can make repairs.

MDI 1/24/2020

2020 6-20-S Sanitary Sewer Lining Assessment  Performing a cost assessment on relining 

(CIPP) all sanitary sewer lines within city.

Planning NO CHANGE - Based on list of "high risk" lines provided by 

sewer dept, have developed a preliminary cost estimate. 

Awaiting updated list from most recent cleaning and cameraing 

prior to moving forward with project.

MDI 3/30/2020

2020 9-20-M Constitution Park Fill Disposal Assessing potential clean fill dump sites 

for Public Works

Design NO CHANGE - Public works dept. is nearing completion of fill 

placement at Site #1 (behind field). E&S site plan for site #2 

(behind pool) has been completed and approved by ACSCD. 

This site will be prepped to receive fill in the near future.

MDI 11/1/2021

2020 12-20-RE Long Field Upgrades - Phase 1 Improvements to Long Field Concession 

and Restroom area. Upgrades include 

electrical improvements.

Construction UPDATE - Carl Belt has completed field improvements and is 

currently working on restroom and concession building 

upgrades. S&S Electric has finished the electrical upgrades 

portion of the project. Estimated completion date is the end of 

April.

MDI 3/11/2022

Page 3 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2020 13-20-WWTP CSO Nine Minimum Controls Annual 

Review

A requirement of our LTCP and NPDES 

Report to look at these controls annually

NO CHANGE  - NMC report spring 2021; finalized in May. Met 

with Public Works (WW and Sewer) to update NMC language 

for 2022.

RJK 3/3/2022

2020 14-20-M Carver Building Repairs Project to repair damage to the Carver 

Building

2020 16-20-M Queen City Drive ADA Improvements Project will include upgrading sidewalk for 

ADA compliance along Queen City Drive 

at corners of Bedford and Frederick 

Streets, below McMullen Bridge.

Construction UPDATE - Part of CDBG 5-year plan. Low bidder was Carl Belt 

at $59,693. Currently waiting for M&CC approval and release 

of funds from HUD prior to initiation of project.

MDI 3/11/2022

2020 17-20-WWTP CSO Long-Term Control Plan 

Projects/Schedule Review

Correspondences with MDE regarding the 

LTCP Projects and the Consent Decree 

(CO) end date: October 1, 2023.

N/A NO CHANGE-  All jurisdictions and AquaLaw  to met with MDE  

on the CO extension process on November 5, 2021.  MDE 

requires a letter with the official request and supporting 

documentation as next step.  This Letter was sent November 

19.  

RJK 3/9/2022

2020 29-20-S Locust Grove Force Main & LaVale 

Water Main Replacement

Joint project between Allegany County 

Public Works & LaVale Sanitary 

Commission to replace the force main 

from the new Locust Grove Pump Station 

and replace water main to LaVale.

2020 30-20-SWM Grow West Facility Expansion SWM Review for proposed expansion of 

Grow West MD Facility @ the industrial 

park.

Construction NO CHANGE - Contractor continues construction of 

expansion. City monitoring SWM situation at incomplete stage, 

as rainwater collection tanks have not been installed. 

MDI 10/8/2021

2021 2-21-WWTP Influent Screening System Upgrade Design and replacement of a new influent 

screening system at the headworks of the 

WWTP.

Design UPDATE - Gwin Dobson has completed the design and 

submitted all documents to MDE to obtain construction permit. 

The plan is to advertise this project immediately following 

receival of the construction permit, with construction to 

theoretically begin in the summer.

MDI 3/11/2022

2021 4-21-W Route 220 20" Water Main 

Replacement

Project to replace the 20" water main in 

Route 220. The water line from I-68 to the 

State Prison is currently owned by the 

City. Discussion are being held between 

the City and County to partner on the 

project or transfer the asset to the 

County.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project is in the planning stages in 

conjunction with Allegany County.   

RLS 4/21/2021

2021 6-21-RE Constitution Park Wading Pool Filter 

Renovation

Replace the cracked filter and other 

improvements to the mechanical building 

equipment for the wading pool.

NEW -    

2021 7-21-WFP 2021 ECWC Watershed Timber Sale 2021 ECWC Watershed Timber Sale NO CHANGE - The timber sale bids have been returned and 

an award issued to American Hardwood Industries.

RLS 7/27/2021

2021 8-21-WWTP SCADA System Integration Solicit bids for a qualified Industrial 

Control System Integrator to complete the 

Water/Wastewater SCADA System 

integration.

NO CHANGE - This is a project to secure integrator services 

to support both the Water Filtration Plant and Water 

Reclamation Facilities   

RLS 4/21/2021

2021 9-21-M Municipal Service Center Security 

Fence

Installation of a security fence at the 

Municipal Service Center

Construction UPDATE - Long Fence began fence installation on January 

26th and finished by the end of February. A final inspection of 

the work was completed on March 7th. The City is now waiting 

for a final invoice from Long Fence to complete the project.

JAT 3/9/2022

Page 4 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2021 10-21-M Undocumented Rights-of-Way Decide how undocumented rights-of-way 

should be dedicated and what form of 

dedication is need to prevent the rights-of-

ways from accidentally being sold.

Study UPDATE -  A project kickoff meeting was held on January 14 

with representatives of multiple City Department Staff, to 

discuss the need for a better understaning of City owned 

proeprty, especially that whcih has been used street right-of-

ways or other infrastruture projects. It is possible that we may 

use GIS to track the informaton.

JRD 1/18/2022

2021 12-21-WWTP Industrial Pretreatment USPI CWT 

Organics Permit Application

An application to discharge industrial 

wastewater as a Centralized Waste 

Treatment facility (Categorical Permit 

request by existing Significant Industrial 

User USPI) 

Planning COMPLETE - Permit issued to USPI, effective date was 

November 22, 2021.

 


RJK 2/17/2022

13-21-W Fayette Street Water Main 

Replacement and Street Repair

Replacement of watermain in Fayette 

Street from Allegany Street to Luteman 

Road, and the repair/repaving of the 

street as needed.

Construction NO CHANGE - Project required development of an ESC Site 

Plan and SOW. These were created and approved by ACSD 

and MDE on 10/14/21. Construction (using City forces) began 

on 10/18/21. Project will take multiple months to complete.

MDI 10/22/2021

2021 14-21-RE Constitution Park Splash Pad The installation of a splash pad and 

surrounding recreational area in 

Constitution Park.

Planning NO CHANGE - A potential site for the splash pad at the pool 

was approved by M&CC. Engineering has been in contact with 

Sparks@Play to discuss design considerations for both the 

splash pad, demolition of the pool deck, and other needed 

preparations for the work. Currently seeking guidance from the 

steering committee & M&CC regarding what splash pad 

equipment/look we want for this project.

JAT 10/4/2021

2021 15-21-W WATER DISTRIBUTION ANALYSIS 

and CIP UPDATE 2021

Water system engineering analysis, 

updated CIP recommendations, 

particularly concerning the Fort Hill 

Reservoir, and Asset Management Info 

for pump stations, PRV Stations and 

water tanks.

Planning NEW - The EADS Group, Inc. was awarded the bid on 

11/16/21. Kickoff meeting was held on 12/1/21.

DTG 1/18/2022

2021 16-21-M Downtown ADA Improvements This project includes the replacement of 

the curb ramps for compliance with the 

latest ADA requirements at the following 

locations: Baltimore/Mechanic intersection 

on the southwest and northwest corners, 

Liberty/Dexter intersection at the 

southeast and southwest corners, 

Centre/Dexter intersection at the 

southeast and southwest corners, and 

Centre/Fredrick intersection on the 

northeastern side.

Planning NO CHANGE - This is a new Project, a preliminary cost 

estimate will need to be developed in order to determine the 

amount of funding needed.

JRD 10/5/2021

2021 19-21-M South Street ADA Improvements This project includes the replacement of 

curb ramps for compliance with the latest 

ADA requirements along South Street 

between Oldtown Road and Industrial 

Boulevard.

Design UPDATE - The bid packge for this project is complete. 

Currently preparing for bidding and discussing timeline and 

funding with CDBG staff.

JAT 3/9/2022

Page 5 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2021 20-21-M Engineering Database Migration This project will implement the migration 

of data from the Engineering 

Department's drawing database and 

project database to the Laserfiche 

document management system including 

the transfer of the scanned images of the 

Department's drawings from the file 

server into Laserfiche and the collection 

of additional metadata for each image.

Planning UPDATE - Engineering staff met with MCCi on March 1st to 

discuss next steps in the migration for our project database 

into Laserfiche. The City also sent over several materials for 

MCCi to review to help inform them while they build some test 

forms for us to discuss for possible use in the future.

JAT 3/9/2022

2021 21-21-WFP Water Allocation Permit Renewal PA 

DEP

The Water Allocation Permit is required to 

be renewed every 25 years. The City will 

use Gwin, Dobson and Foreman to work 

through the permit and establish how 

much flow we can pull from the reservoirs.

Permitting UPDATE- Consultants received all pertinant application 

information.  Application planned to be submitted early March.

Research phase completed; pulling region-wide water 

utilization information for consultants to include in the permit 

application. 

RJK 3/9/2022

2021 22-21-P General City Paving This project paved Merchants Alley 

Parking Lot (Mill/Patch/Overlay) and Kelly 

Road along the southern face of the Grow 

West Facility (Full Depth reconstruct)

Construction NO CHANGE - Merchants Alley Parking Lot has been repaved, 

and portion of Kelly Road is soth of the Grow West Facility is 

currently receiving the full depth reconstruction.

JRD 11/24/2021

2021 26-21-FPM Removal of Potomac Industrial Dam 

at Blue Bridge

Project to remove the industrial dam in 

the Potomac River under the Blue Bridge 

to Ridgeley. Water & Land Solutions will 

be setting up a private commercial 

mitigation bank to fund construction. This 

project is related City Project 9-15-M

Planning NEW -    

2021 27-21-T Maryland Ave & Williams St Traffic 

Study

Study to investigate the potential 

realignment of Maryland Avenue at its 

intersection with Williams Street for future 

development in the Rolling Mill area. BBA 

performed the study using CAMPO 

funding.

Study UPDATE - BBA has begun performing traffic counts and 

compiling information. Preliminary results should be presented 

to the City in March.

RLS 1/26/2022

2021 28-21-M Municipal Service Center Pole 

Building

Project to construct a Pole Building at the 

MSC to store equipment.

Design UPDATE -  Design and specs completed. Project was 

advertised for bid starting 1/14/22.

DTG 1/18/2022

2021 30-21-M Sustainable Communities Program 

Renewal

Sustainable Communities Program 

Renewal documentation. The program 

allows the City to access grant sources 

and is required to be updated every 5 

years.

Planning COMPLETE - Plan updates sent to Community Development 

by Dec 7th.   

RJK 3/9/2022

2021 31-21-RE Constitution Park Amphitheater 

Upgrades

Project to upgrade the Constitution Park 

Amphitheater.

Planning UPDATE -  Project is a part of the 5-year park improvement 

plan. Funding ($174,350) approved through ARPA. A site plan 

and RFP have been developed and are being 

reviewed/updated. Final bid documents should be ready for 

advertising by the end of March.

MDI 3/11/2022

2021
1-22-M MDE Pre Applications FFY22 FY24 Annual Pre Application Jan 2022

Permitting COMPLETE -  Applications submitted by January 31.  RJK 2/17/2022

Page 6 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects February 28, 2022

2021

2-22-W
South Cumberland Water Main 

Replacement Project

Planning UPDATE -  Bids for design services will be returns on 3/31 and 

the preliminary engineering report will be delivered in July.

RLS 3/17/2022

2022

5-22-WRF
WRF Head of Plant and Operations 

Building Roof Replacements
Roof replacement

Construction NEW - This project was bid using Sourcewell. The roofs will be 

replaced in April/May

RLS 3/17/2022

Page 7 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Department Program/Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated By

Date of 

Update

PUBLIC WORKS Curbside Recycling Curbside recycling program started in the 

City of Cumberland July 1, 2014

Ongoing NO CHANGE Outreach to residents; monthly articles in the Times-

News and Facebook. 

RJK 9-Mar-22

PUBLIC WORKS Solid Waste Management 

Board

County Board for planning and discussion 

of County-wide recycling and solid waste 

issues

Ongoing UPDATE Merger of Waste Management with Advanced Disposal 

was announced on Friday October 30, 2020.  GFL owned 

Mountainview Landfill as part of the merger divestiture. Now Noble 

Environmental owns now Mountainview Landfill.

Mountainview Landfill is open at least 1 more contract year (Noble 

provided a contract extension request for FY23 - Approved at the 

Dec 7 Council Meeting).

Contract extension price proposal from Burgmeier's Hauling was 

received prior to Dec 31, 2021. Proposal accepted at Council in 

January .

FY24 1-year contract extension years to resume Fall 2022. 

RJK 9-Mar-22

WWTP Cumberland Pretreatment 

Program

City Ordinance No. 3251 regulates 

industrial and significant dischargers to 

Cumberland's sewer and POTW.  There 

are 4 Significant Industrial Users (SIUs) 

permitted under this Ordinance.  Program 

may also regulate non-significant users 

that pose a threat or cause problems to 

the system or POTW.

Regulatory NO CHANGE

 

 

RJK 9-Mar-22

Program Projects Update February 28, 2022

Page 8 of 10

3/29/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Department Program/Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated By

Date of 

Update

Program Projects Update February 28, 2022

WWTP POTW NPDES Permit Requirements for compliance Annual/As 

Needed

NO CHANGE - Renewal application mailed June 1, 2018.  Permit 

expires April 2020.  MDE conference call took place on July 7, 

2020. Draft permit received July 27th.  Second DRAFT received 

on September 1st, with conference call taken place September 21 

in regards to finalized language.

Draft Permit reviewed by EPA in November; comments by EPA to 

MDE have triggered further drafting of sections of the Permit 

pertaining to primarily to the CSO program.

City has retained the services of AquaLaw, specializing in 

wastewater regulatory/permit reviews and legal counsel.  AquaLaw 

will participate in reviewing the next draft of the permit, any 

revisions that follow and the final permit; in the best interest of the 

City.

Anticipated issue date: unknown at this time.

RJK 9-Mar-22

WWTP/CSO CSO Consent Decree 

Compliance Reporting

Reporting/Inspections Semi-

Annual/As 

Needed

NO CHANGE The last semi-annual report mailed by January 10, 

2022.  Currently the Consent Decree expires April 2023. 

RJK 9-Mar-22

WFP NPDES Permit Requirements for compliance NO CHANGE    RJK 9-Mar-22

Watershed Evitts Creek Steering 

Committee

Cross-jurisdictional committee working on 

source water protection efforts.

Quarterly UPDATE January meeting to took place on 1/13; in-person 

meeting at Cumberland Valley Township Building, Centerville, PA

RJK 9-Mar-22

Page 9 of 10

3/29/2022



 

Complete

Construction

Construction Bidding

Construction Closeout

Design

Inspection

N/A

Planning

RFP 

Study



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of November 16 and 23, 2021, and the Closed Session and 

Work Session Minutes of December 7, 2021, and the Special Public Meeting Minutes of March 29, 2022



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, November 16, 2021  

5:45 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and Joe 

George.  Council Member Laurie Marchini was absent 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; 

Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk;  
 

 

I. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW-NOVEMBER 16, 2021 
  

Mayor Morriss reviewed the reports and minutes, and mentioned the proclamations for Allegany 

HS Marching Band, and for Small Business Saturday.  The Mayor called for any questions or 

comments.  Being none, Mr. Silka  reviewed the ordinances and orders:  

 

 Ordinance 3905 (2nd and 3rd readings) - approving an application (ZMA #21-01)to 

amend the City's zoning map to rezone property at 718 Frederick Street from R-U (Urban 

Residential) to R-R (Rehabilitation and Redevelopment) Floating Zone. 

   Mr. Silka advised that Rick Toms wants to use the property for a tattoo shop, and 

  said the Planning Commission recommends, but with conditions. 

 Ordinance 3906 (2nd and 3rd readings) -  accepting the bid from Michael W. and 

Kimberly A. McKay for the purchase of 17 Paw Paw Alley for the amount of $2,500 and 

authorizing execution and conveyance of a deed to effect the transfer. 

   Mr. Silka advised that this is a Surplus Property bid. 

 Ordinance 3907 (1st reading) - authorizing the issuance and sale of General Obligation 

Bonds in the total amount not to exceed $2,066,664 for the purpose of financing, 

reimbursing, or refinancing costs of the Decatur Street Waterline Project. 

 Mr. Silva advised that this project should begin in early spring of 2022, and said 

materials are already being secured by the contractor.  He added that the total 

cost of this project is roughly $3.1M, and said funding is being provided by an 

MDE grant, a state revolving loan, and an ARC grant. 

   

  Mr. Silva reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda: 

Order 26,901 - approving the Sole Source Purchase of a new 2021 Ford T-250 

Envirosight Camera Van for use by the Sewer Dept. from Infrastructure Solutions Group, 

Mechanicsville, VA, which is offering the VA Sheriff's Association Heavy Equipment 



2 
 

Procurement Program Contract (#22-03-0721) pricing, in the not-to-exceed amount of 

$250,000.00. 

Mr. Silva advised that this purchase in included in the FY22 sewer budget and in 

upcoming CDA debt issue, and said this is a piggy-back with the VA Sheriff’s 

Heavy Equipment Contract.  He added that the City did demo 3 trucks and 

received bids on 3, and said this truck is the best for the City’s needs. 

 Order 26,902 - declaring City-owned property at 309 S. Cedar Street (Tax ID No. 04-

015460) as surplus property, authorizing it for public sale, and authorizing the execution 

of a deed to effect the transfer of the property after 20 days from the date of this order. 

Mr. Silva advised that this is a recent tax foreclosure property, and said the City 

was going to demo it, but said there have been interested buyers who plan to 

renovate it, so it will be offered for public sale. 

 Order 26,903 - accepting the bid from The EADS Group, Inc. for the "Water 

Distribution Analysis and CIP Update Contract (15-21-W)" in the lump sum cost of 

$32,000. 

Mr. Silva advised that this was a competitively bid solicitation for reviewing the 

City’s storage facilities and providing an in-depth review of the City’s water 

storage assets.  He added that this will aid the City in planning a future capital 

project, and said it provides recommendation for replacing the Fort Hill reservoir 

cover, which is planned to be a FY23 key project.   

 

II.  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 

Mayor and Council discussed an upcoming skate park meeting during a work 

session on another night, and also discussed funding for the skate park.  The 

Mayor added that the task force reached out to Commissioner Shade, who said 

the County is still committed to $250K for the skate park.  Mayor Morriss 

discussed the Community Trust Fund (CTF), saying that they want $10K from 

M&CC to create the fund.  He stated that the task force’s preferred site is Jaycee 

Field, but said when it comes to fund raising, they’ll accept the location that 

M&CC determines is best.  There was a consensus to get the ball rolling on 

creating a fund with CTF. 

Mayor and Council discussed the County’s $250K contribution and discussed 

Commissioner Shade saying it would be available at the appropriate time.  He 

explained that by next year the building site should be determined, and said the 

County just wants to make sure it’s going to happened before contributing. 

Mayor Morriss advised that Engine 1309 will be up for inspection this week, and 

then will be ready for WMSR, if it passes.  He said the Polar Express had only 

1300 tickets left, and said they sold over 35K for the calendar year 2021.  He 

added that they don’t expect any big findings from the inspection. 

 

 



3 
 

III.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:10 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021  

4:30 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and Joe 

George.  Council Member Laurie Marchini was absent 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; 

Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Robert Smith, City Engineer; Cheyenne Jenkins, Skate Park Task Force; 

Phil Scolaro, Chairman-Hagerstown Skate Park; Kiera Shilling, President - Western MD Jaycees 
 

 

I. SKATE PARK DISCUSSION 
  

The skate park task force presented an Agenda with items they wanted to cover: 

 

Location: 

 

Mayor Morriss advised that the two places left that are being proposed are Jaycee Field and 

Constitution Park. The Mayor said the task force wants to propose that Jaycee Field would be the 

best option. 

 

Cheyanne Jenkins of the task force committee advised that Spawn Ranch stated that land owned 

by UPMC Western Maryland would not be advisable due to not being able to fit all their 

equipment in there, as well as having issues with trees, tree roots, and existing structures, that 

would cause the budget to skyrocket. She added that the entire skating community is not in favor 

of this site. 

 

Ms. Jenkins stated that Jaycee (Pogey) Field is favored by the skate park task force as well as the 

skating community.  She advised that there are already existing restrooms and a parking lot.  She 

added that the President of the WMD Jaycees advised that they are willing to fundraise as well as 

place a camera system on the City’s behalf to deter vandalism.  She said that the task force would 

like for the City to update the basketball courts, and said they want to have a meeting with Chief 

Ternent to have the CPD begin patrolling the area to “set the tone” of the property. She said she 

also spoke with Chuck from At Ease Security, and said they will get them a price quote by next 

Monday which is expected to be between $8K and $15K. 

 

Ms. Jenkins discussed Jaycee Field being on a 100-year flood plain, and said they have a basic 

understanding of what it will take to build on a flood plain, and said they’ve done research.  She 

said their research showed some parks building a drainage system or retaining wall, and provided 

dimensions on the park and street plaza they are proposing.  She added there will be a pump track 

for beginner, older skaters, BMX, roller blading, wheelchairs, and said the street plaza is for all 

forms of wheels.  She stated that they weren’t really looking to build any big bowls, and said she 

thinks the build will work. 

 



2 
 

Phil Scolaro, Chairman of the Hagerstown skate park committee, stated that bowls require the 

most excavation, and said the group has chosen the least invasive.  He also explained the 

differences between the types of tracks, and said all of it will be concrete. 

 

Funding and Grants: 

 

 

Ms. Jenkins discussed funding, saying the County has pledged 250K, and said they are currently 

looking at a $450K budget.  She said if the City could put up the $10K necessary for the CTF 

account, the community fundraising goal is $20K, leaving $170K left for grants, etc.  She asked 

for clarification on Open Space grant deadlines, and said she spoke with Lee Borror about CDBG 

funding.  She advised that CDBG funded the Hagerstown park, and said she was hoping for $70K 

from CDBG.  She also mentioned the Tony Hawk foundation, as well as the Coca Cola 

foundation. 

 

Ms. Jenkins stated that Spawn Ranch is willing to have a Zoom session with Engineering, 

Council, etc. about any concerns and to discuss the flood plain.  She also asked for signage to be 

placed throughout the area to indicate a recreational area there, and said a lot of kids don’t know 

that Jaycee Field even exists. 

 

Mr. Scolaro said that they had an afterthought for cameras, and said they are beneficial for 

policing, but they benefit other marketing purposes for the City as well, and mentioned filming 

events as well as doing a live feed. 

 

Mayor Morriss advised that M&CC has been discussing the park, and said they are interested in 

figuring out the possibilities, but said they are probably not the people that can do the dissection 

of information and figure it out.  He suggested the best thing to do is let staff start digging into 

numbers on budgeting and engineering, so they can come back with a package and say “this is 

what it would cost at Jaycee Field”, to do it right.  He stated that they will ask staff: 

 

1) Engineering and what it would take at Jaycee Field, the cost, and do due-diligence. 

2) Look at Constitution Park; talk with Spawn Ranch and get their concerns 

3) Funding – Commissioner Shade seems fully committed to $250K 

 

 There was discussion on funding in Hagerstown, with Mr. Scolaro stating that from CDBG and 

 Open Space they got $550K, and said they raised about another $50K in addition to that funding 

 from events.  Mayor Morriss advised the task force to set their goal higher than $20K, and said 

 the more money from the private sector, the better the park.  There was more discussion about the 

 Hagerstown Park.  Mr. Scolaro advised that their park in Hagerstown is pretty big, and has had 

 tracks, etc. added onto it.  He mentioned that he has calculated that the average square footage of 

 a skate park can cost $40/sq. ft., and said the task force is already budgeting up. 

 

 Kiera Shilling, President of the Western MD Jaycees, stated that they have weekly committee 

 meetings and said they met last night to discuss fundraising.  She advised that they have a list of 

 fundraisers they are willing to do, but said the CTF account has to be opened first.  She said in 

 addition, the grants have time-lines, so the sooner they can get the CTF commitment, the sooner 

 they can start fundraising.  She said the Jaycees are looking forward to this, and said they look for 

 diversity and inclusion, including the skating community.  She discussed Jaycee Field having a 

 bad name for years, it being a secluded place, and spoke about having competitions and events to 

 pull people in and help tourism. 

 



3 
 

 Mayor Morriss agreed that The Jaycees involvement is great, and mentioned their track record of 

 success.  He said he wants staff to figure out the best way to approach this going forward.  He 

 said as far as CTF, all of Council is in agreement, and said he can talk with them to get that 

 established. 

 

Timeline: 

 

 Mr. Smith inquired as to a conceptual plan, and said Jaycee Field is problematic, not just because 

 of it being a 100-year flood plain, but because the “flood way” is on that site and takes up the 

 majority of the field.  He explained that the flood way is where rapid water flows.  He advised 

 that he has spoken to MDE, and said they are all for this concept in the flood plain, but said it has 

 to be configured it to stay out of the flood way.  He added that he will need the configuration so 

 that Engineering can piece it into the site. 

 

 Mr. Scolaro advised that for their Hagerstown project, Spawn Ranch had to have the site before 

 the design conception, and said if they could get site samples and information to Spawn Ranch, 

 the head designer may be able to say if it’s a deal-breaker.  The Mayor stated that might be the 

 most critical information so far. 

 

 Mr. Silka suggested that instead of trying to hit all these topics tonight, let Council and staff get 

 together with their team, then get with the committee and discuss what is needed to develop a 

 work flow from there.  Councilman George stated that they support the committee for their hard 

 work, but said M&CC also has to consider the needs of the community at large. He discussed 

 Jaycee Field being the only field in North End, and asked them not to limit themselves to that one 

 location, because a half  million investment is something the City wants to showcase.  He 

 suggested putting the skate park in an area where it can entertain large groups and feature the 

 City. 

 

 Ms. Shilling stated that she would agree 100% if Jaycee Field was being utilized, but it’s not, and 

 said the big issue is not whether to have a skate park, but where.  She stated that wherever the 

 location is, it is not going to please everybody, but stated that the Jaycees have discussed the 

 location at the board level, and wherever it is, they will be in on it. 

 

 Councilman Frazier stated that the field is not being used right now because of Covid, and said it 

 was used for softball in the past and was maintained. He also mentioned that the limited parking 

 there will hurt the success of the skate park. 

 

 Ms. Jenkins stated that the skate park committee is not looking for the park to be a major tourism 

 point, but just want it to meet the needs of the community.  She advised that their meetings are at 

 Dig Deep every Monday at 4:30, and are open to anyone.  She stated that not a single person in 

 the skating community wants the skate park at Constitution Park, and said they told her they 

 would protest it and would continue to use the Dig Deep parking lot.  In answer to a question 

 from Council, she stated that there are approximately 100 people at the professional level that 

 would use the skate park.  She discussed the location of some parks being hidden and are not 

 wanted close to neighborhoods due to noise issues. 

 

 Ms. Jenkins discussed the Mason Recreational Complex, and said her group ruled that out due to  

 heavy traffic and not being safe to bike or skate to, as well as being away from small businesses 

 that skaters like to frequent.  She said the safest way to get to the field for bikers and skaters is the 

 Canal towpath, which isn’t paved, and said that would have to be done quickly. 

 



4 
 

 Ms. Jenkins discussed all the pros of why the committee chose Jaycee Field, and said she wants 

 the park to be in a place that fits the skating community.  She spoke about a new skate park in 

 Rockville that is sitting empty due to rules, regulations, fees, etc., because they didn’t listen to 

 their community’s needs. 

 

 It was decided that Mr. Scolaro will email Mr. Smith a general mock-up so his team can run 

 some plans and numbers.  Mayor Morriss reiterated getting the connection between staff, Spawn 

 Ranch, and the skate park committee. 

 

II.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 5:23 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  





1 
 

 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021  

6:10 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 

George, and Laurie Marchini  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; 

Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News; 

Brian Gowan, WCBC Radio 
 

 

 

I. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW-DECEMBER 7, 2021 
 

 With just a few minutes available until the start of the Public Meeting, Mayor Morriss asked if 

 there was anything in particular they needed to go over on the agenda.  Councilman George 

 inquired about Order No. 26,904 regarding the CPD’s M.O.U. with the US Dept. of Veterans 

 Affairs in Martinsburg to formalize an existing mutual aid relationship, and about the City’s 

 governmental immunity for out-of-state operations, and if it applies.  Mr. Silka advised that 

 although the US Department of Veterans Affairs is out-of-state, they control the Cumberland VA 

 center, with the CPD only patrolling that location, not going out-of-state. 

 

 Councilman George also mentioned that his wife serves as an unpaid volunteer as treasurer for 

 the Family Crisis Resource Center (FCRC), and advised that he will be abstaining from the vote 

 for Orders 26,917 and 26,918, which pertain to the FCRC.  Mayor Morriss advised that they will 

 separate those Orders out of the Consent Agenda vote. 

 

 The Mayor asked if there were any questions about Order No. 26,923 regarding ARPA funding  

 for certain community programs and infrastructure.  Councilwoman Marchini inquired if the 

 funding was going to be done incrementally.  Mr. Silka replied that these projects were pulled out 

 because they were quick and could get off the ground easily, and said the funding would be done 

 incrementally. He said the HVAC was very important because the lead time on that is now 

 months, and added that these projects were vetted internally.  He also advised that they will return 

 to some of the larger projects in the very near future. 

 

 Councilman George advised that those that serve on the Planning Commission are required to 

 have a training session, and said that he will be taking an online course for his seat on the 

 commission. 

 

 

 

 
 



2 
 

 

II.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Special Public Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland 

 

DATE:    March 29, 2022 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. 5:45 p.m. - Convene in open session for the purpose of closing the meeting pursuant to Section 3-

305(b)(3) of the General Provisions article of the Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss the 

Cumberland Economic Development Corporation's acquisition of a certain parcel of City-owned 

land 

 Mayor Morriss convened the public meeting.   

 Motion to close the meeting was made by Council Member Cioni, seconded by Council Member 

Frazier, and approved on a vote of 5-0. 

2. Closed Session 

OPEN SESSION 

 1. 6:15 p.m. - Reconvene into Open Session 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilman Joseph P. George 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 President Raymond M. Morriss  

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary statements of the closed meetings held March 22 and March 29, 2022 



 Mayor Morriss announced that Closed Sessions had been held on March 22, 2022, and March 29, 

2022, and read into the record summaries of those meetings, which are attached hereto and made 

a part of these minutes as required under Section 3-306(c)(2) of the General Provisions Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing - to discuss the proposed plan and application to the Maryland Department of 

Business and Economic Development to redesignate the existing Arts and Entertainment District 

in Historic Downtown Cumberland, and to allow for public comment 

 Mayor Morriss convened the Public Hearing at 6:25 p.m. 

 Julie Westendorff, Executive Director of Arts and Entertainment District of Cumberland, advised 

that the last 10-year designation period for the local Arts and Entertainment District was coming 

to an end and had to be formally redesignated by the Mayor and City Council.  

 The Arts and Entertainment Districts program had been established in 2001 by the Maryland 

General Assembly as an economic development tool designed to attract artists and other creative 

enterprises to Maryland’s towns and cities.  The program offers tax incentives and tax abatements 

to encourage artists to locate and work within the Districts.  

 The local district is comprised of the original designated area of the Canal Place Heritage Area, 

plus the two (2) subsequent expansion areas of the corridors of North Mechanic and North Center 

Streets, and the Decatur Heights area. 

 Prior to 2019, the District was funded by a yearly $2,500 Technical Assistance Grant from the 

State, with a $2,500 match from the Downtown Development Commission.  As of 2019, a yearly 

General Operating Grant of $15,000 has been awarded by the State in addition to a $2,500 

Technical Assistance Grant.  There is opportunity in 2022 for an additional $10,000 in funding 

through a Network Organization Development Grant, which the local District will be applying 

for. 

 Ms. Westendorff discussed key accomplishments, which included improvements to Merchant’s 

Alley, the creation of an Arts and Entertainment District marketing video, a Public Arts Planning 

Grant, Baltimore Street Revitalization Renderings, and Quilt Walk 2021. 

 Future strategic initiatives were discussed and included incentivizing creative enterprise 

development through technical assistance and support of investors, development of artful 

initiatives to enhance underserved commercial and residential areas in the District, development 

of an artist makerspace, development of programs to showcase creative entrepreneurs, 

development of opportunities for impromptu performances and creative work. 

 The Mayor and City Council members expressed their support of the Arts and Entertainment 

District and value that it brings.  Council further expressed their appreciation for the A&E’s 

collaboration with the Downtown Development Commission and the Cumberland Economic 

Development Corporation. 

 No comments from the public were offered. 

 Mayor Morriss closed the public hearing at 6:51 p.m.  



New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

1. Resolution No. R2022-03 - endorsing an application to the Maryland Department of 

Business and Economic Development (DBED) for the re-designation of the existing Arts 

and Entertainment District in Historic Downtown Cumberland 

 The Resolution was read in Title only and Mayor Morriss called for questions or 

comments, of which there were none. 

 Motion to approve the resolution was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 26,983 - authorizing execution of a FY 2023 Arts & Entertainment District 

Operating Support Letter of Agreement to define the City's role as the local government 

with regard to the Cumberland Arts & Entertainment District, and to approve estimated 

in-kind support of $500 

 Mr. Silka reviewed the Order and Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments. 

 Motion to approve the Order was made by Councilman Cioni, seconded by 

Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person. 

There were no public comments. 

Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 

 

 

 Minutes approved on: ______________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor ______________________________________________ 

 

 ATTEST:  Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk __________________________________ 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,984 - approving a Special Taxing District residential exemption of $334.93 for 27 N. Centre 

Street







File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,985 - approving the hiring of James T. Wilson as a construction inspector for the Decatur 

Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement Project (31-17-W) to provide onsite technical advice on a 

day-to-day basis for the amount of $32,000



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  Order 26,985                   DATE:    April 5, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the hiring of James T. Wilson, Construction Inspector for City Project 

“Decatur Street 24” Crosstown Water Main Replacement” (31-17-W), to provide onsite 

technical advice on a day-to-day basis, with a pay rate of Twenty-five Dollars and No 

Cents ($25.00) per hour, for a total of 1,280 hours on the job, totaling Thirty-two Thousand 

Dollars and No Cents ($32,000.00), be and is hereby approved.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget: 002.299EE.63000 

MDE Grant Funds, DWSRF Loans 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 4/5/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Construction Inspector for Decatur Street 24” Crosstown Water Main Replacement, City Project 31-17-
W 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

The City of Cumberland has hired a Construction Inspector, Jim Wilson, to provide onsite technical 
advice on a day to day basis. Jim Wilson will be paid a rate of $25.00 for a total of 1,280 hours on the job 
which will be a total of $32,000.00. 

Amount of Award: $32,000.00 

Budget number: 002.299EE.63000 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: MDE Grant Funds, DWSRF Loans 









File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,986 - authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with MDOT - 

SHA to award Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant assistance in the amount of 

$6,291,232.63, or 80% of eligible project costs, with a $1,572,808.16 City match, to be used for the 

Baltimore Street Access Project



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,986                     DATE:    April 5, 2022_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) by and between the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland and the 

Maryland Department of Transportation State Highway Administration (MDOT SHA), 

awarding Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant assistance in the amount of Six 

Million, Two Hundred Ninety-one Thousand, Two Hundred Thirty-two Dollars and Sixty-

three Cents ($6,291,232.63), or 80% of eligible actual project costs with a City match of One 

Million, Five Hundred Seventy-two Thousand, Eight Hundred and eight Dollars and Sixteen 

Cents ($1,572,808.16), to be used for the Baltimore Street Access Project (12-16-M). 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Grant: $6,291,232.63; City Match: $1,572,808.16 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 4/5/22 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, Derrik Grimm 

 

Item Title: Memorandum of Understanding (TAP) for Baltimore Street Access, City Project 12-16-M 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

The Memorandum of Understanding is between the Maryland Department of Transportation, acting on 
the behalf of the State of Maryland by and through the State Highway Administration (MDOT SHA), and 
the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland.  The agreement awards grant assistance in the amount of 
$6,291,232.63 or 80% of eligible actual project costs with a $1,572,808.16 City match to be used on the 
Baltimore Street Access Project.  

 

Amount of Award: $6,291,232.63 Grant, $1,572,808.16 City Match 

Budget number: N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: Grant 



PC #XXXXX 
 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 for  

Baltimore Street Access  
 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) executed in two originals 
made and entered into this ________ day of ______________ 2022, by and between the Maryland 
Department of Transportation acting for and on behalf of the State of Maryland by and through the 
State Highway Administration, hereinafter called “MDOT SHA,” and the Mayor and City 
Council of Cumberland acting through its Department of Engineering, hereinafter called the 
“PROJECT SPONSOR.” 
 
WHEREAS,  certain funds have been set aside in the Federal funding authorization bill 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) for the purpose 
of providing funding for alternatives to the transportation system, 
hereinafter called the “TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES 
PROGRAM” (TA PROGRAM); and  

WHEREAS,  in accordance with FAST Act, the Maryland Department of Transportation 
may reimburse the PROJECT SPONSOR up to an amount not to exceed 
eighty (80) percent of the eligible expenses of a project that is part of the 
TA Program, as those terms are hereinafter defined; and  

 
WHEREAS, the PROJECT SPONSOR will redesign the existing pedestrian setting on 

Baltimore Street to allow for the return of vehicular traffic.  The project will 
occur along Baltimore Street from Canal Street to Queen City Drive and 
include portions of Liberty and Centre Streets; and   

 
WHEREAS,  reimbursement of expenses for a PROJECT under the TA Program is 

subject to State and Federal requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the PROJECT SPONSOR is required to provide certain funding for the 

PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the PROJECT SPONSOR and MDOT SHA acknowledge the need to define 

the responsibilities and obligations of each party with regards to the 
PROJECT; and                    

 
WHEREAS,   MDOT SHA is responsible for the oversight and assistance to the 

PROJECT SPONSOR projects financed with federal funds in accordance 
with Title 23 U.S.C; 23CFR 635.105; containing regulations (general and 
permanent rules published in the Federal Register) relating to highways 
including 2 CFR 200.  Regulations based on Civil Rights requirements in 49 
CFR Part 21, the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Policies, and other Federal laws and regulations sets forth procedures where 
by services and facilities of PROJECT SPONSOR may utilized on federally 
aided projects and requires that an agreement be executed between MDOT 



2 | P a g e  
 

SHA and the PROJECT SPONSOR setting forth the conditions under 
which any project would be implemented; MDOT SHA determines a sub-
recipient of Federal funds is able to satisfy the following under (23 U.S.C. 
106(g) (4), 

 
WHEREAS,  the PROJECT SPONSOR has adequate project delivery systems and 

sufficient accounting controls to properly manage projects; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the PROJECT SPONSOR is staffed and equipped to perform work 

satisfactorily and cost effectively, and adequate staffing and supervision 
exists to manage the Federal project; and   

 
WHEREAS,  All parties to this MOU shall comply with the requirements of APPENDIX 

A (2 pages) and APPENDIX E (1 page) of SHA’s Standard Title VI/Non-
Discrimination Assurances DOT Order No. 1050.2A which generally set 
forth non-discriminatory regulations and other civil rights related 
regulations.  APPENDIX A and APPENDIX E are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as substantive parts of this document.  The term “Acts” 
in Appendix A refers to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  The term 
“Regulations” in Appendix A refers to 49 CFR Part 21 and 28 CFR Section 
50.3.  The term “Recipient” in Appendix A refers to MDOT SHA.  

 
WHEREAS,  the PROJECT SPONSOR desires to cooperate with MDOT SHA in 

carrying out the PROJECT in accordance with the regulations, policies and 
procedures of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), with the 
provisions of MDOT SHA’s, USDOT Order dated August 14, 2014 and 
Stewardship Agreement between MDOT SHA/FHWA dated May 21, 2015, 
where applicable.  

 
WHEREAS,  construction of the PROJECT described in this MOU is in the mutual 

interest of the parties and of the citizens of the City of Cumberland and the 
State of Maryland. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual promises between 
MDOT SHA and the PROJECT SPONSOR, as set forth herein, the adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree to the following: 
 
  I. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. “ACTUAL PROJECT COST” is the total actual cost to develop, design and 
construct the “PROJECT”.  The ACTUAL PROJECT COST may be more or less 
than the ESTIMATED PROJECT COST and will be determined after the 
PROJECT has been completed. 

 
B. “APPLICATION” is the written document submitted by the PROJECT SPONSOR 

describing the PROJECT. 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

C. “AWARD” is the amount of TA Program funds allocated for this PROJECT, which 
is MDOT SHA’s contribution toward the ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS.   

D. “ESTIMATED PROJECT COST” is the total estimated cost to design, develop and 
construct the entire PROJECT.  The ESTIMATED PROJECT COST includes but 
is not limited to, design, construction, utility relocation and required right-of-way 
acquisitions.  

 
E. “MATCH” is the monetary and non-monetary contribution toward activities 

directly related to the ACTUAL PROJECT COST.  MATCH includes contributions 
by the PROJECT CO-SPONSOR and can include partners and funding sources 
other than the TA Program.  The cash MATCH shall be at least twenty percent 
(20%) of the ACTUAL PROJECT COST.   

 
II.  DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

The Transportation Alternatives Program is a reimbursable, federally funded program for 
transportation-related community projects designed to strengthen the intermodal 
transportation system.  TA Program supports communities in their development of projects 
that improve residents’ quality of life and enhance their travel experience, regardless of 
travel mode.  The program fosters more choices for travel by providing funding for 
projects that enhance the cultural, aesthetic, historic and environmental aspects of the 
intermodal transportation system.  The program can also assist with funding for projects 
that do the following: 

• Create pedestrian and bicycle facilities; 
• Rehabilitate historic transportation buildings; 
• Manage vegetation; 
• Construct turnouts and overlooks; 
• Convert abandoned railway corridors into shared-use trails; 
• Mitigate highway runoff; and 
• Provide other non-traditional, transportation-related alternatives to the state 

transportation system 
 

A. The PROJECT includes roadway redevelopment, constructing Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant sidewalks, installing bike lanes, signage and 
traffic controls.  The PROJECT eligible items propose pedestrian and bicycle 
improvements of approximately 2,100 linear feet along Baltimore Street from 
Canal Street to Queen City Drive and would include portions of Liberty and Centre 
Streets.  See complete line items in Exhibit C.   
 

B. The PROJECT will be constructed on property owned in fee simple or on perpetual 
easements held by the PROJECT SPONSOR, or if on MDOT SHA right-of-way, 
via an MDOT SHA District Office permit issued to the PROJECT SPONSOR.  The 
PROJECT will be owned and maintained by the PROJECT SPONSOR. 

 
i. Once the PROJECT is completed, if on MDOT SHA right-of-way, 

maintenance will be conducted by PROJECT SPONSOR by 
notifying the District Office at least 48 hours prior to needing 
access.   



4 | P a g e  
 

 
III. PROJECT FUNDING 
 

A. The PROJECT term will be a total of 60 months or 5 years.  All PROJECT 
activities shall begin on the execution date of this MOU and continue for 60 
months.   
 

B. The AWARD shall not exceed the lesser amount of $6,291,232.63 or eighty 
percent (80%) of eligible ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS, whichever is the lesser 
amount. 

 
C. The ESTIMATED PROJECT COST for the TA eligible PROJECT items is 

$7,864,040.79 and the estimated project cost for all items (including TA and non-
TA eligible items) is $11,231,587.95.  The basis for determining the ESTIMATED 
PROJECT COST is contained in the APPLICATION, included herein by reference. 
 

D. Only construction expenses directly related to eligible TA Program activities are 
eligible for TA Program funding.   
 

E. If the ACTUAL PROJECT COST exceeds the ESTIMATED PROJECT COST, the 
PROJECT SPONSOR shall be solely responsible for such additional costs.  The 
AWARD shall not be increased to reflect the higher ACTUAL PROJECT COST. 
 

F. If the ACTUAL PROJECT COST is less than the ESTIMATED PROJECT COST, 
the AWARD may be reduced to eighty percent (80%) of the ACTUAL PROJECT 
COST.   

 
G. The PROJECT term shall begin on the date of the execution of the MOU and shall 
 end on the same month and day five years later.  

  
H. All project activities must be completed on or before the end of the PROJECT 
 term.   

  
I. If MDOT SHA denies the PROJECT SPONSOR’s request to extend the 
 advertisement date for all or any part of the PROJECT, MDOT SHA shall not be 
 liable for any expenses of any kind incurred by the PROJECT SPONSOR with 
 respect to all or any part of the PROJECT.  
  
J. If the PROJECT cannot be completed as described in MOU then the AWARD will 
 be withdrawn and the PROJECT SPONSOR shall return to MDOT SHA all 
 AWARD monies previously paid to the PROJECT SPONSOR, immediately upon 
 request by MDOT SHA.  If the PROJECT SPONSOR fails to return the AWARD 
 monies due to project non-completion, as stated herein, then MDOT SHA may 
 make a deduction from the PROJECT SPONSOR’s share of Highway User 
 Revenues in an amount equal to the AWARD monies previously paid to the 
 PROJECT SPONSOR.    

 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
 
IV. PROJECT MATCH 

 
A. The MATCH for the TA eligible items is estimated to be $1,572,808.16.  All match 

activities must be directly related to the proposed TA project.  
 

B. The MATCH shall include non-federal cash towards ACTUAL PROJECT COST 
equal to at least twenty percent (20%) of the final AWARD, as contributed towards 
TA funded construction activities. 

 
C. With the exception of National Recreational Trail funds, any funds, grants, or 

activities paid for in whole or part by the United States Department of 
Transportation, shall not be used as or considered to be a part of the cash portion of 
the MATCH.  

 
D. The amount of MATCH required for any other funds, grants, or activities paid by 

MDOT SHA, the Maryland Department of Transportation, or the United States 
Department of Transportation, may not be used as MATCH for the PROJECT. 

 
E. The MATCH may include such items as construction management, soil 

disturbances (clearing, grubbing, excavation), foundations, inspection and materials 
testing, maintenance of traffic and traffic management, utilities relocation, erosion 
and sediment control, fencing and guardrails, paving, electrical, painting, 
landscaping, interior hardware and labor.   
 

F. Items such as right-of-way acquisition and related activities, grant management or 
work required by the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”) are not eligible 
for reimbursement or for the cash portion of the MATCH.  

 
G. Maintenance activities, maintenance equipment and other non-essential PROJECT 

activities do not qualify as MATCH and are not eligible for reimbursement.  
 
V. PROJECT PAYMENT 

 
A. MDOT SHA shall use the AWARD to reimburse the PROJECT SPONSOR for 

MDOT SHA’s share of the ACTUAL PROJECT COST, to include but not be 
limited to site preparation, construction management, soil disturbances such as 
clearing, grubbing and excavation, foundations, installed construction building 
materials, inspection and materials testing, maintenance of traffic and traffic 
management, utilities relocation, erosion and sediment control, fencing, guardrails, 
paving, electrical, painting, landscaping, interior hardware, labor and contingency 
fees on construction related items.    
 

B. Request for reimbursement shall be limited to those expenditures made consistent 
 with the provisions of the MOU and the cost principles set forth with the TA 
 program.  
  



6 | P a g e  
 

C. Reimbursement extends only to those costs incurred during the period of the 
 PROJECT and for which periodic reimbursement reports are submitted no later 
 than one month after the end of the reporting period and in the case of the final 
 reimbursement report, one month after the PROJECT period end date.  

 
D. The PROJECT SPONSOR shall submit to the TA Program Manager copies of paid 
 invoices to show ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS incurred in designing and 
 constructing the PROJECT. Invoices shall contain sufficient documentation and 
 proof of payment, in the MDOT SHA’s sole discretion, to evidence actual expenses 
 of items eligible for reimbursement.  Upon receipt, the TA Program Manager will 
 forward invoice to the District Engineer for approval.  

 
E. ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS deemed not eligible for reimbursement by law and/or 

by MDOT SHA shall be deducted from each invoice by the amount of the non-
eligible portion of the expenses.  All such non-eligible ACTUAL PROJECT 
COSTS shall be borne solely by the PROJECT SPONSOR. 
 

F. If any other funds, grants, or activities paid for by MDOT SHA, the Maryland 
Department of Transportation, or the United States Department of Transportation, 
are used for ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS, separate invoices must be submitted to 
MDOT SHA.  
 

G. The PROJECT SPONSOR shall keep written documentation of all ACTUAL 
PROJECT COSTS and make the documents available upon request by MDOT 
SHA. 
 

H. Reimbursement claims received after the MOU end date will be considered for 
payment on a case-by-case basis with prior written justification explaining the 
expected delay submitted by the PROJECT SPONSOR.    

 
I. Prior to the final payment of the AWARD by MDOT SHA, the PROJECT 

SPONSOR shall certify in writing (a) that the MATCH has been satisfied, and (b) 
the actual amount of the MATCH.  
 

J. MDOT SHA shall remit payment to the PROJECT SPONSOR within thirty (30) 
days following receipt of each invoice, provided: 

 
i. the invoice contains all necessary information for processing, in 

MDOT SHA’s discretion,  
ii. no charges are disputed by MDOT SHA,  

iii. the invoice does not cause the AWARD amount to exceed the actual 
MATCH amount, and 

iv. the payment of the invoice does not cause the maximum AWARD to 
be exceeded.   

 



7 | P a g e  
 

K. The PROJECT SPONSOR shall invoice MDOT SHA on a monthly OR quarterly 
 basis (after activities have begun) for actual costs incurred and paid by the 
 PROJECT SPONSOR in accomplishing the PROJECT activities.  Each invoice 
 shall be accompanied by sufficient documentation, in the sole discretion of MDOT 
 SHA, to evidence actual cost incurred.  A sample template is provided as Exhibit B 
 and is submit to change.  In addition, the following conditions apply:  
 

i. A fully executed MOU needs to be in place prior to any work 
beginning.  Work started prior to a fully executed MOU will be 
denied.    

ii. The PROJECT SPONSOR must withhold a five (5) percent 
retainage from the contractor, calculated on the PROJECT estimated 
cost, until the project is satisfactorily complete.   

iii. When construction is complete, PROJECT SPONSOR must contact 
TA Manager to schedule a final inspection prior to  

iv. final invoice and retainage being paid.   
v. The final invoice for reimbursement shall include a written 

certification from the PROJECT SPONSOR to MDOT SHA that 
all activities associated with the TA funding AWARD have been 
completed in accordance with State and Federal law and this MOU.  

 
L. In the event MDOT SHA provides construction-related services for the 
 PROJECT (e.g., construction inspection, materials testing, etc.), pursuant to a 
 written request to do so by the PROJECT SPONSOR, then the AWARD  shall be 
 reduced by an  amount incurred by MDOT SHA equal to the monetary value of the 
 construction related services. 

 
M. The PROJECT SPONSOR will forward the completed closeout package to MDOT 

SHA’s District Office and TA Manager.  The completed package will include a 
certification of the PROJECT materials used and the PROJECT workmanship, 
which must be signed and stamped by the contractor and the PROJECT Sponsor.  
The completed package shall also include a request for the final reimbursement of 
the AWARD.   

 
N. MDOT SHA will incur no additional responsibility for reimbursement of ACTUAL 

PROJECT COSTS after the PROJECT closeout package has been accepted and 
processed 

 
O. Funding of the PROJECT is not a guarantee of future TAP funding for any future 

phases of the PROJECT. 
 

VI. CHANGE ORDERS 
 

A. In the event the PROJECT SPONSOR wishes to request a change order for the 
PROJECT, the PROJECT SPONSOR shall forward the request for the change 
order to MDOT SHA in writing. 
 



8 | P a g e  
 

i. Change orders should be sent to the District Office Assistant District 
Engineer (ADE) of Construction for approval. 

 
B. The PROJECT SPONSOR and the contractor must agree with the changes before 

submitting the change order to MDOT SHA.  
 

C. The PROJECT SPONSOR must approve any change order recommended by 
MDOT SHA. 

 
D. Change orders may be approved for amounts that exceed the amount of the contract 

awarded to the contractor, but such approvals will not increase the amount of the 
AWARD. 

 
E. In the event the PROJECT SPONSOR wishes to request a change order for the 

PROJECT, the PROJECT SPONSOR shall forward the request for the Change 
Order to MDOT SHA in writing.  

 
F. If the PROJECT SPONSOR proceeds with significant changes that result in 

additional ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS, without MDOT SHA’s prior approval, the 
PROJECT SPONSOR will not be reimbursed for the increase.  

 
G. Change orders for significant scope changes or for more than a ten (10) percent cost 

increase will require MDOT SHA’s TA Program Executive Committee approval.  
 

H. MDOT SHA shall notify the PROJECT SPONSOR of approval or rejection of the 
change order in writing.  

 
I. With the exception of emergency change orders, any change order not given prior 

review and approval in writing by MDOT SHA shall not be reimbursed.  
 

J. Emergency change orders may be approved by telephone.  The appropriate 
paperwork must then be filed within 14 days. 

 
K. If the emergency occurs during non-business hours and a representative from 

MDOT SHA is not available to approve the emergency change order, the 
PROJECT SPONSOR may approve at their sole risk.   

 
L. MDOT SHA has the right to deny reimbursement for any change order that has not 

been given approval by MDOT SHA. 
 

M. All change orders must comply with and not violate the NEPA documentation or 
extend beyond the approved project limits. 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

VII. PROJECT REPORTING 
 

A. The PROJECT SPONSOR will provide monthly electronic progress reports to 
MDOT SHA in the format that will be supplied by MDOT SHA.  The report is due 
to MDOT SHA by email the fifth business day of each month. For right-of-way 
only projects, monthly progress reports are required until settlement has occurred. 
 

B. The requirements of MDOT SHA as required in the 2CFR Part 200.501 “Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal 
awards, issued December 26, 2014 and the Federal Single Act must be followed by 
those PROJECT SPONSORS receiving $750,000 or more in federal funds.  The 
Single Audit Act of 1984, PL 98 502 amended by PL 104 156, described in “Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-133” requires PROJECT SPONSOR to 
obtain an audit that includes internal controls and compliance with Federal laws 
and regulations of all federally fund programs in which the PROJECT SPONSOR 
participates.  

 
VIII. DESIGN OF PROJECT 

 
A. Prior to advertising the PROJECT, prepare and submit to MDOT SHA in a 
 timely manner all environmental studies and environmental documentation 
 required for the PROJECT under applicable State and/or Federal law, including but 
 not limited to those required for National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
 approval.  

i. Environmental Permits – Prior to the commencement of PROJECT 
work, apply for and obtain all permits required by State and/or 
Federal authorities, including but not limited to Erosion and 
Sediment Control, Storm Water Management, Critical Areas and 
Wetlands.  

ii. Other permits – Prior to the commencement of PROJECT work, 
apply for and obtain all permits required by federal, state or local 
authorities including Utility Permits, Traffic Control Plans and any 
required permit issued by the MDOT SHA’s District Office, if any 
part of the PROJECT is located within or along MDOT SHA right 
of-way.    

 
B. PROJECT SPONSOR must construct the PROJECT in compliance with 
 MDOT SHA Standards and Specifications for Construction and Materials. As the 
 General Provisions, Terms and Conditions and Technical Requirements, as 
 applicable and as described within the 2021, or latest edition of the Maryland 
 Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration’s Standard 
 Specifications for Construction and Materials and all revisions thereto.  The manual 
 is viewable via the internet 
 at https://roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/sscm.aspx?PageId=853&lid=SSP.    
 

https://roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/sscm.aspx?PageId=853&lid=SSP


10 | P a g e  
 

C. The PROJECT SPONSOR hereby represents and warrants it’s compliance with the 
 General Provisions, Terms and Conditions and Technical Requirements, as 
 applicable, and as described within the 2021, or latest edition of the Maryland 
 Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration’s Standard 
 Specifications for Construction and Materials, and all revisions thereto. The manual 
 is viewable via the internet 
 at https://roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/sscm.aspx?PageId=853&lid=SSP.   
 
D. Coordinate and conduct any required public hearings or requests for public input.   
 
E. If seeking AWARD funding for design, the project sponsor must adhere to all State 
 and Federal regulations pertaining to hiring a design consultant or project manager.  
 Obtain approval from MDOT SHA prior to hiring a design consultant or project 
 manager.    
 
F. Prior to issuance of any Request for Proposal (RFP), submit any proposed RFP 
 to MDOT SHA for review and approval.  
 
G. PROJECT SPONSOR must comply with the State and Federal procurement 
 requirements as set forth in Section 18.36 Procurement of 49 CFR Part 18 - 
 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to 
 State and Local Governments or 49 CFR Part 19 - Uniform Administrative 
 Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, 
 Hospitals and other Non-Profit Organizations, as applicable.    
 
H. Design and construct the PROJECT to be accessible to individuals with physical 
 disabilities in accordance with Federal and State requirements.  

  
I. Provide for adequate drainage and stormwater management as required by State 
 and local requirements.   

  
J. Upon request by MDOT SHA, submit for MDOT SHA review and written 
 comment, design plans, specifications and estimates at major design milestones, 
 i.e.,  

i. preliminary design thirty percent (30%),   
ii. semifinal design sixty percent (60%),  

iii. final review ninety-five percent (95%), and   
iv. Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) one hundred percent 

(100%).    
  

K. In the event the PROJECT impacts utilities within MDOT SHA right-of-way, the 
 PROJECT SPONSOR shall determine the date the right-of-way was acquired by 
 the utility company (or the date said utility was installed), and the date MDOT 
 SHA acquired the right-of-way.    

i. If the utility company’s right-of-way ownership or installation 
preceded MDOT SHA’s ownership, the PROJECT SPONSOR shall 
be solely responsible for the design and relocation of the utilities.    

https://roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/sscm.aspx?PageId=853&lid=SSP
http://htp/www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2009-title49-vol1/CFR-2009-title49-vol1-part18
http://htp/www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2009-title49-vol1/CFR-2009-title49-vol1-part18
http://htp/www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2009-title49-vol1/CFR-2009-title49-vol1-part18
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/hep/guidance/superseded/49cfr19.cfm
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/hep/guidance/superseded/49cfr19.cfm
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/hep/guidance/superseded/49cfr19.cfm


11 | P a g e  
 

ii. If MDOT SHA’s ownership preceded the utility company’s right-of-
way ownership or installation, MDOT SHA may consider exercising 
its prior rights and may request the utility company move the utility 
at the sole expense of the utility company.  

  
L. Submit the PROJECT design plans, specifications and estimates for MDOT SHA 
 review and written comment.  In addition:  

i. The PROJECT shall comply with the design requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); the PROJECT design shall 
not include features that would make it more difficult for people 
with disabilities.  

ii. If the PROJECT is unable to comply with the ADA design 
requirements, a design waiver shall be requested.  The PROJECT 
can proceed to advertisement or construction if the project meets the 
mandatory conditions set forth in these guidelines or has been 
granted a design waiver.  

iii. Design waivers should be sent to TA Program Manager and 
the MDOT SHA Director of Highway Development.   

 
IX. ADVERTISING 

 
A. Coordinate and supervise the advertisement, bid process, and award of the 
 PROJECT contract including, but not limited to, the following:   

i. Prepare advertisement package in accordance with the State and 
Federal procurement laws and regulations and submit 
to MDOT SHA for review and written approval prior to 
advertisement.  

ii. Advertise for bids in accordance with State and Federal procurement 
laws and regulations after MDOT SHA has provided written 
approval of the bid package.  

iii. Notification must be sent to TA Program Manager, Federal Aid 
Program group and local District office of the bid date to have 
a MDOT SHA representative attend.   

iv. Open bids in accordance with State and Federal procurement laws 
and regulations.  

v. Evaluate the bids to determine which bidder will receive the award.  
The award shall be made to the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder.  

vi. Submit to MDOT SHA documentation of all bidders, bid costs and a 
recommendation of award.  Award of the contract cannot be given 
to a prospective bidder until MDOT SHA has concurred with the 
recommendation and issues a Written Notice to Proceed (NTP).  

vii. Prepare the Concurrence in Award (CIA) package, in accordance 
with State and Federal procurement laws and regulations and submit 
to MDOT SHA for review and written approval prior to giving the 
apparent lowest responsible responsive bidder the approval to 
proceed.  



12 | P a g e  
 

viii. After written receipt of the concurrence in award from MDOT SHA, 
award the contract and issue Notice to Proceed (NTP) to the lowest 
responsible responsive bidder.  

  
B. The PROJECT SPONSOR will provide MDOT SHA with a project and 
 organizational chart including a person in “responsible charge” (RC) of the 
 administration and construction inspection for the project.  This person must be a 
 full-time employee of the PROJECT SPONSOR’s agency who is accountable for 
 the project per FHWA Memorandum dated August 4, 2011, that is include in the 
 Appendix G of the Development Guide for LPAs and Other Sub-Recipients of 
 Federal funds.  

i. The PROJEC SPONSOR may hire a consultant to oversee the 
project, however, the RC must be available to response to any issues 
on the project and be informed on  the day-to-day activities.    

ii. The PROJECT SPONSOR will be the primary contact for the 
MDOT SHA regarding contract administration issues.  The RC is 
ultimately responsible to ensure the requirements described in this 
manual are followed and documented as a stipulated condition for 
receiving the Federal Aid associated with the project.    

 
X. CONSTRUCTION 

 
A. Hold a pre-construction meeting with the contractor to which MDOT SHA 
 representatives (Assistant District Engineer of Construction and Area Materials 
 Engineer from respective District) shall be invited.  

  
B. Hold bi-weekly or monthly meetings, to which MDOT SHA representatives shall 
 be invited, with the contractor to discuss construction progress.  Minutes of the 
 meetings shall be sent to MDOT SHA’s District Office biweekly or monthly.  

  
C. Coordinate and supervise engineering and construction activities by administering 
 the construction contract for the PROJECT and providing such activities as 
 construction engineering, construction inspection, and materials testing 
 and certification, in accordance with Federal and State requirements.    

i. Materials field-testing must be performed by an inspector that has 
been certified by MDOT SHA.  

ii. Materials testing must be performed by a laboratory that has been 
certified by MDOT SHA.  

  
D. The PROJECT SPONSOR or consultant employed by PROJECTS SPONSOR to 
 complete construction inspection duties must maintain good records for the 
 following, but not limited to:  

i. Measured field quantities for payment  
ii. Work activities on the Inspectors Daily Reports (IDRs)  

iii. Certifications of material quality  
iv. Field diaries as a general project record  
v. Environmental permits and commitments  



13 | P a g e  
 

vi. Other documentation to show observance with Federal and State 
requirements.    
 

E. The PROJECT SPONSOR must supply adequate construction inspection staff  
  during all construction activities.  The RC and/or designated on-site consultant  
  assigned to inspect the project are required to have and maintain proper experience, 
  training, certifications and knowledge throughout the duration of the project to  
  ensure all requirements are met.    

  
F. Construct the PROJECT using AWARD FUNDING, in accordance with applicable 
 design standards.  Use the project documents, from the time of approval, for 
 advertisement should meet current MDOT SHA book of standards and the 
 currently adopted standard specifications for construction and materials.     

i. Construct the PROJECT to be accessible to individuals with 
physical disabilities in accordance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act Federal and State requirements; the PROJECT 
design shall not include features that would make it more difficult 
for people with disabilities.  

ii. Construction Permits -  Prior to advertisement of PROJECT work, 
coordinate with MDOT SHA to resolve any conflict(s) with utility 
companies within the PROJECT limits; purchase or obtain 
perpetual easements to all properties within the PROJECT limits; 
and coordinate with any state or local agencies for the required 
traffic control plan approvals.  Any fee or easement obtained for this 
project must be obtained in accordance with easement obtained for 
this project must be obtained in accordance with Federal and State 
acquisition requirements.  

iii. Liability Insurance - Provide MDOT SHA with evidence of 
adequate liability insurance to cover third party claims arising from 
the PROJECT as set forth in the Maryland Department of 
Transportation/ SHA Standard Specifications for Construction and 
Materials and addendums in force on the date of this MOU.    

  
G. Prior to performing any work upon or entering upon any property required for the  
  PROJECT, provide MDOT SHA with documentary evidence of fee ownership,  
  easement interests, or rights of entry for said property, in the PROJECT   
  SPONSOR’s name.  Any fee, easement, or rights of entry obtained for this project 
  must be obtained in accordance with federal and state acquisition requirements.  

  
H. Prior to commencement of any construction activities, provide the MDOT   
  SHA with evidence of adequate liability insurance to cover third party claims  
  arising from the PROJECT, as required by the  most current Maryland Department 
  of Transportation/SHA Standard Specifications for Construction and   
  Materials and addendums, located        
  at http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf , page 45, section GP-7.14.  

  

http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf


14 | P a g e  
 

I. Prior to commencement of any construction activities, require that the PROJECT  
  SPONSOR’S contractor (s)  provide evidence of adequate purchased liability  
  insurance to cover third party claims arising from the PROJECT, as required  
  by the  most current MDOT SHA Standard Specifications for Construction and  
  Materials and addendums, located at http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf, 
  page 45, section GP-7.14 and TC-5.01, located      
  at http://www.marylandroads.com/ohd/part2.pdf, page 100.  
  

J. The PROJECT SPONSOR shall require its contractor(s) to provide a surety  
  performance bond in the amount of the most responsive and responsible bid to  
  ensure that the PROJECT will be constructed if the contractor defaults.  PROJECT 
  SPONSOR shall also require a surety payment bond in the amount of the estimated 
  construction cost to ensure that the contractor pays its subcontractors and suppliers, 
  as required by the most current MDOT SHA Standard Specifications for   
  Construction and Materials and addendums, located     
  at http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf, page 20, section GP-3.03.  
  
K. The PROJECT SPONSOR must have all materials sampled, tested and inspected 
 to comply with the details published in the specifications at the time of 
 advertisement award.    

  
L. The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
 (ASSHTO) certified testing laboratory of the PROJECT SPONSOR shall be 
 incorporate in the work only after the materials have been approved and accepted 
 by MDOT SHA.  

i. The PROJECT SPONSOR must contact the MDOT SHA’s Office of 
Materials and Technology (OMT) prior to executing the project to 
determine material testing requirements and associated expenses.    

ii. MODT SHA will provide general requirements and associated cost 
estimate to the LPA for concurrence.  

iii. MDOT SHA shall accept all materials meeting MDOT SHA’s Standard 
Specification for Construction Materials.  The PROJECT SPONSOR 
must follow all current policies, procedures and directives of the MDOT 
SHA for material testing, clearance and acceptance and in accordance 
with State Quality Assurance (QA) Process 
Manual (https://roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/index.aspx?PageId=
284).     

  
M. MDOT SHA District Construction Office, Office of Construction (OOC), OOC  

Safety Inspectors, OEI Compliance Office, Office of Environmental Design and/or 
Highway Hydraulics Division will provide technical support and guidance for 
compliance documentation.  
 

N. Withhold a five (5) percent retainage from the contractor per invoice submitted 
 until the project is satisfactorily complete.  

  

http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf
http://www.marylandroads.com/ohd/part2.pdf
http://www.roads.maryland.gov/ohd/part1.pdf


15 | P a g e  
 

O. The PROJECT SPONSOR will develop a punch list after the semi-final inspection 
 and track completion of remaining items till closeout.  The PROJECT SPONSOR 
 will schedule a project final inspection meeting/walk through and invite all key 
 project representatives (MDOT SHA District staff and TA Program Manager).  

  
P. The PROJECT SPONSOR will send a letter to notify the contractor of the Final 
 Acceptance and MDOT SHA and FHWA should be carbon copied.  A project 
 closeout audit is required by the District Contract Finals personnel prior to 
 processing of final reimbursement and contract closeout.    

 
XI. PROJECT SPONSOR SHALL 
 

A. In the event that MDOT SHA undertakes future highway-related improvements 
 within MDOT SHA’s right-of-way that impact the PROJECT, the PROJECT 
 SPONSOR shall be responsible for the redesign and relocation of the PROJECT, at 
 the PROJECT SPONSOR’s sole expense.  
B. Perform, at the PROJECT SPONSOR’s sole responsibility and cost, all 
 maintenance of the PROJECT, both during and after completion of the PROJECT.  
 This includes, but is not limited to, structural repair, storm water management, 
 aesthetic treatments, safety amenities, graffiti removal, painting, cleaning, trash 
 removal, security, and enforcement of regulations and laws affecting the 
 PROJECT.   
 
C. If a public event is scheduled for the PROJECT, notify MDOT SHA’s Office 
 of Communications at least thirty (30) days prior to the event.  Public events must 
 be coordinated with the MDOT SHA’s Office of Communications prior to 
 proceeding with the event.  Failure to do so will jeopardize future TAP funding for 
 the PROJECT SPONSOR.   
  
D. The PROJECT SPONSOR, to the maximum extent permitted by law and in  
 accordance with conditions and procedures in the Local Government Tort Claims 
 Act, hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the State of Maryland, 
 the MDOT SHA, and their respective members, officers, agents, employees and 
 contractors from and against any and all claims, actions, damages, liability and 
 expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ and other professional fees, in connection 
 with the loss of life, personal injury, or damage to property arising out of or in any 
 way connected to the PROJECT or caused by any act or failure to act by the 
 PROJECT SPONSOR, its contractors, or its agents.  

 
XII. MDOT SHA SHALL 

 
A. Provide review and comment on the PROJECT design plans, specifications and 

estimates submitted by the PROJECT SPONSOR at major design milestones. 
 

B. Following receipt of all PROJECT documents requiring MDOT SHA approval, 
provide written certification of acceptance of the PROJECT in accordance with 
Title 23 of Federal requirements, 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/cfr23toc.htm. 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/cfr23toc.htm


16 | P a g e  
 

C. Provide oversight inspection and review during the construction of the PROJECT 
to assure all obligations are being met.  

 
D. Review Concurrence in Award (CIA) package and notify PROJECT SPONSOR in 

writing that they may award the contract to the lowest, responsive, responsible 
bidder.  

 
E. Provide the AWARD as the PROJECT SPONSOR fulfills its obligations pursuant 

to this MOU and submits invoices to MDOT SHA for ACTUAL PROJECT 
COSTS, as determined solely by MDOT SHA. 

 
F. Process the request from the PROJECT SPONSOR for final payment after 

receiving the completed closeout package from the PROJECT SPONSOR. 
 

G. Withhold five (5) percent of the amount of the AWARD, which will be included in 
the final invoice, until the closeout package is received from the PROJECT 
SPONSOR and approved by MDOT SHA. 

 
H. Upon receipt and approval of the closeout package, reimburse within 30 days to the 

PROJECT SPONSOR the five (5) percent withholding of the ACTUAL PROJECT 
COST. 

 
XIII. GENERAL 
 

A. This PROJECT is subject to the TA Program Milestone Policy, which is included 
herein by reference and located online at 
http://roads.maryland.gov/OPPEN/Milestones_Policy.pdf   
 

B. In the event that the PROJECT does not meet the provisions of the Milestone Policy 
and funding is withdrawn, 

i. all obligations of the MDOT SHA with regard to the PROJECT or any 
withdrawn portion of the PROJECT will cease;  

ii. MDOT SHA shall not be liable for any expenses of any kind incurred 
by the PROJECT SPONSOR with respect to all or any part of the 
PROJECT; 

iii.  the PROJECT term shall begin on the date of the execution of the 
MOU and shall end on the same month and day five years later;  

iv. All project activities must be completed on or before the end of the 
PROJECT term;  

v. if MDOT SHA denies the PROJECT SPONSOR’s request to extend the 
advertisement date for all or any part of the PROJECT, MDOT SHA 
shall not be liable for any expenses of any kind incurred by the 
PROJECT SPONSOR with respect to all or any part of the PROJECT. 
 

C. The AWARD for the PROJECT shall be used for the purposes stated in this MOU 
only and shall not be redirected by the PROJECT SPONSOR for any other 
purpose.  
 

http://roads.maryland.gov/OPPEN/Milestones_Policy.pdf


17 | P a g e  
 

D. At the time of the PROJECT close out, any portion of the AWARD not used or 
needed for the PROJECT shall revert to MDOT SHA for distribution to other TA 
PROGRAM projects in MDOT SHA's sole discretion. 

 
E. This MOU shall ensure to and be binding upon the parties hereto, their respective 
 agents, successors, and assigns.  However, the PROJECT SPONSOR shall not 
 assign its interests in this MOU without prior written consent of MDOT SHA, 
 which may be reasonably withheld.  
  
F. This MOU and the rights and liabilities of the parties hereto shall be governed in 
 accordance with Maryland law.   

  
G. Salt, chemical, or other treatment of MDOT SHA roadways will not be prevented 
 or compromised by this Agreement.  No warrant is given on water quality or 
 specific contents being conveyed or discharged from MDOT SHA culverts.   
  
H. Pursuant to the requirement of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the 
 Annotated Code of Maryland and any amendments thereto; the Maryland 
 Governor’s Executive Order barring discrimination; Section 22(a) of the Federal 
 Aid Highway Safety Act of 1968 (23 USC 22(a)); and Section 504 of the 
 Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 USC 794), employment in connection 
 with this project will be provided without regard to political or religious opinion or 
 affiliation, race, color, creed, sex, national origin, or physical or mental handicap.   
  
I. The PROJECT SPONSOR is subject to and shall comply with the above cited 
 requirements and with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (PL88-352), to the 
 end that no person shall, on the ground of political or religious opinion of 
 affiliation, race, creed, sex, national origin or physical/mental handicap, be 
 excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subject to any 
 discrimination under this project.    
  
J. Only steel, iron and manufactured items produced in the United States shall be used 
 in carrying out this PROJECT, in accordance with the provisions of the Buy 
 America act (23 USC 101 Note).   
  
K. The signatories for the PROJECT SPONSOR and Fund Recipient certify that the 
 PROJECT SPONSOR and Fund Recipient will provide a drug-free workplace in 
 accordance with the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (49 CFR Part 29 
 Subpart F).  
  
L. The PROJECT SPONSOR shall not, nor will it make any award or permit any 
 award (sub-grant or contract) at any tier to any party which is debarred or 
 suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal 
 assistance programs under Executive Order 12549 – Debarment and Suspension.  
  
M. With regard to Federal contracts, grants, loans and cooperative agreements, the 
 signatories for the PROJECT SPONSOR and Fund Recipient certify to the best of 

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-1999-title49-vol1/CRF-1999-title49-vol1-part29
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-1999-title49-vol1/CRF-1999-title49-vol1-part29


18 | P a g e  
 

 their knowledge and belief that pursuant to 31 USC 1352, they are in compliance 
 with the Lobbying Restrictions placed on the use of federal funds.   
  
N. None of the funds under this MOU will be used for any activity specifically 
 designed to urge or influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose the 
 adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before any State or local 
 legislative body.  Such activities include both direct and indirect (e.g., “grassroots”) 
 lobbying activities, with one exception.  This does not preclude a state official 
 whose salary is supported with FHWA funds from engaging in direct 
 communications with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with 
 customary State practice, such as invited testimony before a legislative body, even 
 if such communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption of 
 a specific pending legislative proposal.    
  
O. In accordance with Section 4 of Executive Order 13513 – Federal Leadership On 
 Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, the signatories for the PROJECT 
 SPONSOR and Fund Recipient will seek to adopt and enforce policies that ban text 
 messaging while driving government-owned vehicles when on official project 
 business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the PROJECT.  This 
 includes PROJECT SPONSOR employees and contractors or consultants hired by 
 the PROJECT SPONSOR to perform work on the project.  
  
P. Pursuant to the requirements of 49 CFR Part 18, Section 18.42 – Retention and 
 Access Requirements for Records, the PROJECT activities covered by this MOU 
 are subject to audit.  Therefore, all documents and records subject to audit shall be 
 retained by SHA and PROJECT SPONSORS for a minimum of seven (7) years 
 after the final payment has been received.  If there is an action resulting from an 
 audit or other action started before the expiration of the seven-year period, the 
 records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues 
 or the end of the seven-year period, whichever is later.  
 
Q. All notices and/or invoices, if to the PROJECT SPONSOR, shall be addressed to: 

 
 Robert Smith, P.E. 
 Director 
 Cumberland Department of Engineering 
 57 North Liberty Street 
 Cumberland MD  21502 
 Phone: 301-759-6601 
 Email: robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov 
 

   

https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/executive-order-federal-leadership-reducing-text-messaging-while-driving
https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/executive-order-federal-leadership-reducing-text-messaging-while-driving
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2012-title49-vol49-vol1/CFR-2012-title49-vol1-sec18-42
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2012-title49-vol49-vol1/CFR-2012-title49-vol1-sec18-42


19 | P a g e  
 

If to MDOT SHA: 
    

Anthony Crawford, P.E. 
District Engineer, District 6    
Maryland Department of Transportation 
State Highway Administration 
1251 Vocke Road 
La Vale MD  21502 

   Phone 301-729-8465  
   Email: acrawford@mdot.maryland.gov 

 
All invoices for TA Program FUNDING approved for payment shall be forwarded 
for processing to: 
 

   Ms. Christy Bernal 
   Transportation Alternatives Program Manager  
   Regional and Intermodal Planning Division 
   Maryland Department of Transportation 
   State Highway Administration 
   707 North Calvert Street, MS C-502 
   Baltimore MD  21202 
   Phone: 410-545-5659 
   Fax: 410-209-5025 
   Email: cbernal@mdot.maryland.gov  
 



20 | P a g e  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of Understanding 
to be executed by their proper and duly authorized officers, on the day and year first above 
written. 

               MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
                STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

 
 
 
 
______________________________ By:___________________________________ 
Witness           Tim Smith, P.E.                                  Date   
             Administrator 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY  RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________  
Dayna Pachman    C. Scott Pomento, P.E., 
Assistant Attorney General    Director for Office of Planning and Preliminary 
      Engineering   
       
       
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      William J. Bertrand 
      Director of Office of Finance  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 | P a g e  
 

 
     MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
               BY: ________________________________  
Insert Name and Title     Mayor Raymond Morris             Date 

    
        
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
 
 
                     
Enter Name        
Attorney         
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit A:  Appendix A and Appendix E of the Title VI Assurances 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



23 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

 



24 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 



25 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit B: TA Reimbursement Cover Letter  
  
[ON PROJECT SPONSOR LETTERHEAD]  
  
Date  
  
Ms. Christy Bernal  
Transportation Alternatives Program Manager  
Regional and Intermodal Planning Division  
Maryland State Highway Administration  
707 N. Calvert Street, C-502  
Baltimore, MD 21202  
  
RE: [Project Title]  

State Highway Project Number:  -- if applicable  
  
Invoice Number - (Must be a unique number)   
  
Dear Ms. Bernal:  
  
This is to inform you that the [Project Sponsor] has completed approximately ___% of the work 
needed to complete the [Project Title], using $[Award Amount] in Transportation Alternatives 
Funds.  At this time [Project Sponsor] respectfully requests reimbursement from the Maryland 
State Highway Administration for the [description of material/labor supplied for this portion 
of project].  
  
Project Information   
  
Federal ID Number    

Total Cost of Project    

TAP Awarded Amount    

TAP Match Requirement Amount    

Timeframe Invoice Covers    

TAP funds requested for reimbursement with 
this invoice  

  

20% Match amount for this reimbursement    

  
Remit payment to the following address:  
(Provide the address that the reimbursement is to be paid)  
  
Please find the following items enclosed:  
  

• 20% Match documentation   



26 | P a g e  
 

(Provide detailed report presenting the breakdown of how you have spent this money on the project 
with invoices and canceled checks)   

• Copy of invoice from contractor/vendor to sponsor    
(Include copy of invoice)  

• Copy of cancelled check paid to contractor/vendor   
(Include copy of cancelled check(s)  
Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me 
at XXX-XXX-XXXX.  

  
Sincerely,  

  
  

[Name and Title]  
[Project Sponsor]  

  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 | P a g e  
 

 
Exhibit C:  Eligible Project Line Items 
 
 
 

 



28 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 | P a g e  
 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,987 - approving the sole source purchase of 2 new Ford Escape SUVs from National Fleet 

Group for the not-to-exceed amount of $59,777.48 using Sourcewell Contract No. 091521-NAF in 

accordance with City Code Section 2-171 (c)



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,987                   DATE:    April 5, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of two (2) New 2022 Ford Escape S AWD SUVs from 

National Auto Fleet Group 490 Auto Center Drive, Watsonville, CA 95076, who is offering  

Sourcewell Contract #091521-NAF pricing, in the not-to-exceed cost of Twenty-nine 

Thousand, Eight Hundred Eighty-eight Dollars and Seventy-four Cents ($29,888.74) for each 

vehicle, be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with City 

Code Section 2-171(c), which pertains to purchasing cooperatives and state and local 

government contracts (piggyback contracts). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget: 

Street Department  001.056.64000 ………$29,888.74 

Sewer Department 003.320.64000…….    $29,888.74 













File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,988 - authorizing execution of a Contract of Sale with Steve and Wendy Herker for the sale of

their property at 306 Fayette Street (Allegany County Land Records, Book 2075 / Page 164) to the City 

for the amount of $125,000, authorizing acceptance of the deed, and granting the City Administrator and 

City Solicitor the authority to execute documents necessary for the transfer



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,988                      DATE:   April 5, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Contract of Sale by 

and between the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (“Buyer”) and Steve Herker 

and Wendy Herker (“Sellers”) for the property and improvements thereon located at 

306 Fayette Street, Cumberland, as recorded among the Land Records of Allegany County, 

Maryland in Book 2075, Page 164, Tax Account No. 06-037836 for the purchase price 

of One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($ 125,000.00); and 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City shall accept the deed effecting the 

transfer of said property, provided settlement contingencies are met; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Administrator and City Solicitor 

are jointly and severally granted the authority to grant extensions of time for the date of 

settlement and execute and deliver such documents as are necessary to facilitate or effect 

the closing for the subject property. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 
 

 

 











File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,989 - accepting the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission, dated March

28, 2022, to (1) approve a Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA #22-01) to amend the "Recreation, 

Amusement, Entertainment" section of the Use Regulations Table (Section 25-132) to define Fantasy 

Gambling as a permitted use in all city zones besides residential; (2) amend Section 11-132, entitled 

"Gambling," to support the proposed amendments to the Use Regulations Table; and (3) authorize the 

commencement of procedures to effect the amendments  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,989                      DATE:   April 5, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 

THAT, the recommendation from the Cumberland Planning and Zoning 

Commission, dated March 28, 2022, to approve a Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA #22-

01) to amend the “Recreation, Amusement, Entertainment” section of the Use 

Regulations Table (Section 25-132) to define Fantasy Gambling as a permitted use in all 

city zones besides residential (i.e. B-L, B-H, B-CBD, B-C, I-G, G-C, G-I), and also amend 

Section 11-132 of the City Code, entitled “Gambling,” to support the proposed 

amendments to the Use Regulations Table, be and is hereby accepted; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that formal procedures to approve the 

recommended amendment to the City Code shall be commenced. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

 

 















File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,990 - appointing Joseph P. George to the Evitts Creek Steering Committee as the City Council

representative effective April 5, 2022



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,990                      DATE:   April 5, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 

THAT, Joseph P. George be and is hereby appointed to the Evitts Creek Steering 

Committee as the City Council Representative effective this date.  

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 
 

 

 


	Top
	1.	Presentation - Brianna Lavelle - Fort Hill HS Freshman Varsity Wrestler
	2.	Presentation- Employee Milestones
	1.	Proclamation - Cumberland Arbor Day 2022
	2022 Cumberland Arbor Day

	2.	Proclamation - Fair Housing Month
	2022 Fair Housing Proc

	.	Report - Administrative Services Monthly Report - January 2022
	Admin Svcs Monthly Rep Jan 2022

	.	Report - Engineering Div. Monthly Report - February 2022
	2022-2 Eng Div Monthly Report

	1.	Minutes - Work Sessions-Nov. 16 and 23; Closed and Work Sessions-Dec. 7, 2021        2021
	Work Session Mins-AgendaRev-M&CC Updates 11-16-21
	Work Session Mins-Skatepark 11-23-21
	2021-12-07 Closed Session Minutes-BackPageSummaryOnly
	Work Session Mins-AgendaRev-12-07-21
	2022-03-29 Special Public Meeting MINUTES

	1.	Public Hearing - CDBG 2
	.	Order 26,984 - STD Exemption - 27 N. Centre St.
	Corrected Saville STD Order 26984
	Corrected Saville STD backup sheet

	.	Order 26,985 - Construction Inspector -Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement, City Project 31-17-W
	2022-04-05 Order 26985 Construction Inspector hired for 31-17-W
	Agenda Worksheet
	Part B Approval Decatur Street

	.	Order 26,986 - MOU-TAP Funding-Baltimore St. Access Project (12-16-M)
	2022-04-05 Order 26986 MOU-MDOT-SHA-Baltimore St. 12-16-M
	Agenda Worksheet
	2022.03.22_Baltimore Street Access FINAL MOU

	.	Order 26,987 - S.S. Purchase - Two 2022 Ford Escape S AWD SUVs - Nat'l Fleet Group
	2022-04-05 Order 26987 Sole Source Ford Escape SUVs - Nat'l Auto Fleet Grp
	Council Agenda Summary_001 (9)
	Quote_001 (1)
	Sole Source Request_001 (4)
	Recommendation Letter_001 (13)

	.	Order 26,988 - Contract of Sasle 306 Fayette St
	2022-04-05 Order 26988 contract of Sale Herker 306 Fayette St
	Contract of Sale - Herkers 309 Fayette St

	.	Order 26,989 - P&Z Recommendation Fantasy Gambling
	2022-04-05 Order 26989 ZTA 22-01 Planning and Zoning recommendation
	P&Z Recommendation Fantasy Gambling

	.	Order 26,990 - Joe George to EVSC
	2022-04-05 Order 26990 Joe Goerge Evitts Creek Streering Committee

	Bottom

